
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU 
GOVERNOR 

June 2, 2021 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson 1-lall 
Concord, NH 03301-3834 

Telephone: (603) 271-2155 
Fax: (603) 271-2615 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Counci I 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 0330 I 

lU:QlJl•:S-1'1,:U ACTION 

DIVISION OF PLANNING 

DIVISION OF ENERGY 

www.nh.gov/osi 

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the Contract Agreement (Contract# I 075485) with 
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (VC # 177198), Manchester, NH, by increasing the contract amount by 
$621,793.00 from $668,522.00 to $1,290,315.00 for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective 
upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through June 30, 2022. The original contract was approved 
by Governor and Council on 06/24/2020, item #76. I 00% Federal Funds. 

Funding is avai lable in the following account: 

Onicc of'Slrntcg.ic l11i1iativcs, Fuel J\ssis1a11cc 
01-02-02-0240 l 0-77060000-074-500587 
Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 

EXPLANATION 

FY2021 

$621,793.00 

The U.S. Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance (IO CFR 440.15) gives Community Action 
Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role 
providing a range of services to clients eligible for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their 
historical performance delivering the weatherization program 

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program, 
funded by a grant from US DOE. The objective of the program is to weatherize homes to reduce energy 
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that 
include people who are elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts 
with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level. 
OSI estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will contribute to the weatherization 
of approximately one hundred lifty-seven add itional ( I 57) homes in the State as a result of this funding. 

In the event Federal Funds are no longer avai lable, General Funds will not be requested to supporl this contract. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~~(' ' 
cJ 

Jared Chicoine 
Director 

G&C06/16/21 

TDD Access: Relay NH l-800-735-2964 



OFFICE QF STRATEGIC INITIAtrVES

SUBJECT: WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (WAP) .PY20 CONTRACT Wl'TH
SOUTHERN/NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES,,

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated-May 1.0,2021, is between the State of New^Hampshire, Office of Strategic
Initiatives, 107 Ple^ant Strect,-Concprd, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as ̂ 'OSI")
arid Southem.New Hamps^e Seiyicesj.inc;, 40 Pine Street, Manchester, Hillsborough County, NH.03103
(hereinafter "referred,to as the:"ConU:actoi^'),

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "A^eenient"), Contract.J^uinber. 10754.85, as
approved by-Gbveradr and .Council on June 24,.2020 (I.tem #7.6), the Contractor:has agreed to, provide;,
certain Services, perthe.terms and conditions specified inthe.Agreement in consideration ofpaymeht.by
pSLof certain sums.as.specified therein.

WHEREAS',, pursuant to the provisions ofiSectiori .17 of the. Agreement', theAgreement may be modified
or amended only byia writtOT instrunient executed byftte p^es ftiefetb and only after.approval of-such
modification or amOTdment by the Qo.vempr and Council; and

V^EREAS, The-State;and ftie Contractor haye agreed,.to;.amend file Aj^eemerifin certain fiwpe<rts;

NG"W THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of thC'Covenahts and conditions,in the
Agreement as set iforth hCTein, the parties^agrec to the following;

1. Amendment and Modificatibn of Agreement. The; Agreement isr amended ahd modified as
fdiibws':

A). Price Limitation: Auien.d Subparagraph .1.8 of the. Agreenienf by striking the
current sum of $668,522.0,0 and 'ihsating in place ftiCTeof the total sum of ■
$ 1,290,315,00 wherever it occurs.

B) Time Extension: Amend Subparagraph I .'7 of the Agreement by striking, the
current completion date of'June 30^ 202l,;and inserting'in,place tiiereof jun
30,.2022, wherever it;occurs;

C) Exhibit B -Ecooe of Services:
a. Amend Exhibit;B, Item.#2, by strikmg the currentcpmpletioii.date of

Julie 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof June 30, 2Q22" whereyer it
;occurs.

b. Airieud Exhibit B, Item #4, by striking the Curfent:phrase."eighty (8Q)
dwelling units" and inseitiiig:ih place thereof "oiie hundred forty-two
(142) dwelling units."

P). Exhibit C - Payment Terms:
a. -Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of

$668;522.00, the:"Contract©d Amount," and inserting irl place-thereof
the total sum of $ 1,290,315.00.

SNHSWXT^ZO.Aincndnicnt Contractofelfiiiials:-.
Grant: DE-EE0007935 Date: n - JO I
CFDA: 81.042 I^^e 1 of3



b. Am^d Exhibit C,:firet;p,^graph/by sirildng current sum of
$39,254,00 for Administration and inserting in place.th'ereof the total
sum of $93,813.00.

0. Amend Exhibit Ci first paragraph, by sbiking Ac current sura of
$46,937;00-fof Training and Technical Assistance and inserting in
pliace tiiereof.the total sum of $92,605.00.

d. Ainerid Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$22,357.00 for Health' and Safety Measures and inserting in place
thereof the: total suni of $11,379.00;

e. Amend Exhibit G,.;first paragraph, by'strikirig.the,.current:sum-.of
$559j974.00 for Program Activity and inserting in place.thefeof the
fotaj sum of:$ 1,092,518.00.

2. CoptinuanceTof Agreement. Except as specifically amended,and modified by the Terms and
Conditions ofthijs Amendmenti obligations of the parties hcreimdCT shall remaunin full force
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the. Agreement as it existed
immediately priof-.tb this Amendment.:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics have hereunto set-their hands as-of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Office 4f.Stiate^cJnitlatives

By: IM

So em

By:
D

re.
Cx_

ed ChicOine, Director

New Hampsj^re Services; Inc.

nnalee Lozeau,^5AecutiYe Director

State of

Couhtyhf/

On.this /<S^d3iV of. . 2021. before me. krejr
theundersigned'officerVp^onall^ appeafed le..e~ ̂  6 uL . who acknowledged
hibmselfheraclf to be the-'i^jciaOijA\/g'^^/k^tjWTof Southern NewHanip'shife:Services; 'Inc;..a
corporation, and that he/she being ,auth^ so*to do, executed &e ;foregoing.instnimentfor Ae
purposes contalnedrtherein

.IN WITNESS WHEREOFi I; hereunto set my hand:and:Official.seal.

\  i /) DEBRA D; STOH'RER
v/fi NotaryPubfic-NewHOTpshire

\ —y,' My Coninils&tun Expire October 7,2025
Notary Public/Justiceiof the Peace.
MyCommissionexpires:

SNHS:WXN20, Amendment Goiitractor Initials:
Ci^t: DE-EE0pp7935 Date; yri/tu
.CFDA:'8I.042 , / P^e2of3



Approved as to form-, execiitibn and.substance:.

OFFICE^^^^^^^J^GENERAi,
•Assist^t Attorney Geriei^

Date; _

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract; was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hainpshire at their meetin'g oh. ; , 2021.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By: ^

Title:

SNHS WCN20 Ainendmcht' Contractor Initials:

Grant: DE-EE0007935 Date: jHfyy
CFDA::81.042. •/ Page'3of3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. WlliamM. Gardner. Secretary of Stateof.the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify, that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHTRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered, to lrai«act business in New H^pshire on May 28.1965.

I further certify that all fees and documents required by. the Secretary of State's office have been received arid is in good standing

as far as this,office.isjconcerned.

'Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0005338591

SIfi

u.

•0

A

4*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be

the Seal of the Stale ofNew Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D..2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State.



CERTIFICATE OFAUTHORITY

I, QrviHe Kerr , Glerk/Secrelaiy of South'em New HampsHife Services. Inc.
(coiporationnamc)

(hereinafter-the "CorDoration*'). a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1)1 am the duly
(state)

elected and acting Cleric/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody Md am familiar with the
'minute books of the Corporation; (3) I.ain duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Cbnwration have authori2cd,- on Sent. 25.2020 ; such authority

I  . , (date)

to be.in force and efFect.until\/c< «-L

(contract terniination date)

The person(s) holding the below lirtcd posiHon(s) are authorized to .execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract Of other, ihstfurricht for the mIc of products arid sefvices:

Donnalee Lozeau Executive Director
(Name) (Position)

!RvariClouthief' Debutv Director
(N^e) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of.Directors was; held in,accordance with New Harhps^e ^
(State of incorporation)'

law arid the by-laws of tiie Co^fatiori; arid (6) said authorizatibri has not been modified, amended or
rescinded.and continues in foll;forc,e and,;effect as.of the date hereof

(6) I hereby understand, that the State of New .Hampshire will rely on tins certificate ̂  evi.dcnce that the
person(s)Tisted above cuireritly occupy thc:position(s) indicated and that they have fidr authority to bind
the coi^oration. To the exterit'that there aic.ariy'limits on the authority of ainy listed individual to bind
the coiporatiOn bn contracts v^th.tbe State of Nfew Hainpshire, all such liriiitatiOns are expfcssly-i^ated
herein.

... . . ... .

I HAVE HEREUNTO, set my hand as-the Cleiic/Secfetarv of the corporation this ' ̂ dav of

Mcuy . 20 :^/

^^<1erk/Secretafy



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OAm (uwDorrrYY)

03m/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER;

IMPORTANT: If (he certificate holder Is an ADDmONAL INSURED; the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or l>e.endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED^ subject to the terms and conditions.oif the pdlcy, certain policies may requira.an endorsement A statement on'
this certificate does not confer ri^its to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementts).

raooucER

FIAI/Cross Insumnce

1100 Elm Stmt

Manchester NH 03101

NAM^ Andrea Nlcklin
(603) 669-3218 1 1"" (603) 645-4331

^^^53. anick9nOcrossagency.com

INSUREWSIAFFOROWO COVERAGE NARI

INSURER A: PhSadelphls Indemnity Ins Co 18056

IMSURCO

Southern NH Seiylces Inc.

P.O. Box 5040

Manchester NH 03108

INSURER a; Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

WSURER C ;

INSURER 0:

WSUfSRE:

INSURER F:

COURAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 21.22AII the# REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICfES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD •
INDICATED. NOTWrmSTANDtNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERiM OR CONWHON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALLTHE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPe OF INSURANCE nnfiivn' POLiCVNlACBER UMns

A

X COMMERCIAL OeKERALUABRJTY

€. 1 Xl.OCCUR

PHPI<2250^ 0^1^21 04/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE f 1,000.000

I CLAMiSMAC UAMAUb lOKLNIbO
PREMISES (Ea ecainwieal , '1,000.000

MED EXP lAnv ona Mrton) 3 10,000

•
PERSONAL a AOV INJURY 3 1.000.000

GENIAOOREOATE LtMTT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AOOREOATE' f tpoo.ooo

_

POLICY 1 L^LOC
OTHER:

PROOUCTS • COMPIOP AGO 2.000.000

t t

A

1 AUTOiftoemjABajTY

PI^K2250336 04^01/2022

COMBINED SINGLE LIM/f
lEaaeeWwtt S 1.000.000

X ANY AUTO

OCOULEO
FTOS,,
>NOWNEO
ITOSONLY .

BOOILY NJURY (Par'ptaen) $

OiWEO . ..
ALnOSONLY
HREO, ;
AUTOS ONLY

sc
•AL BOOLY INJURY IPw acdMm) s

NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
rParacddenO ' t;

(.

A'

X UMBRELLA LIAa

excEsauAe

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB760240 04/01/^21 0^1/2022
EACH OCCURRENCE 3 S.000.000

AOOREOATE 5.000,000

DEO 1 i RETENTION S 1 s

B.

MTORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LUaaJTY

ANYPR0PRjeT0R4*RTN£W6XECUnvE rTTI
0FFICERACM8ER EXCLUOEO?:
{litandt«of»inl|im ' '
If IMS dssoCM undsf

OE^RtPnON OF OPERATIONS Maw

N/A HCKS2021000P382 (^:) NH .02/01/^21 (^1/2022

Vl PER • 1 1 6th.
^ STATUTE 1 1 ER

EX.EACHACCtC»rT 3. 1.000,000

EX. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 3.1.000.000

EX. DISEASE - POLCT LMT 3 1.000.000

. A-
ProfMsional Liability

PHPK22S03^ 04/bl/2(K1 04>bi^22

Limit 61.000.000

OESCRPTIONOF0P£RAT10NS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLE {ACORO 101,AMItfoiMiAmarioSchtduta;aty.b*ttlKh«l«ai«f»B(MC«tortqulr«tf)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street

Johnson Hall

Concord NH 63301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCEUED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

.  r

AUTHORIZED REPRESEMTATTVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

G1988-201SACORD CORPORATION. All rights resAfved.
The ACORD name end logo are registered marks'of ACORD



Chrjstopher T. Sununu

Governor

ST^;;g:F:NE:W^KA;M 9:35 DftS
Offige OF Strategic Initiatives

107,pleasant Street; Jdhnson.Hall-:
Concord. NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155
Fax; (603) 271-2615

Division of Planning

Division op Enercv

\vww.nh.gov/osi

June 1,2020

Mis Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State l-lousc

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
& COUNCIL ON: 6/24/2020
AGENDAITEM: #76

PO# 1075485

REQU KSTRI3 ACrnON

I) Authorize the OfTicc of Strategic Initiatives (OSl) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE eoniraci with
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (VC //177198), Manchester, NH, in the amount of $668,522.00 for
the federal Weothcrizaiion Assistance Program (WAP) effective July 1, 2020, upon approval of Governor
and E.vecutive Council, through June 30, 2021. 100% Pcdcral Funds.

l-unds to support this request'arc anticipated to be available in the following account i
avnilabilily and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

in FY 2021 upon

■Office" 6f:Stra'tcgic lnitiativcs::L Wcathcrization FY 2021
01 -02-02-024010-77060000-074-500587
Grant for Pub. Assist & Relief $668,522.00

2) Further request aulhori/alion to advance to the vendor $ 1 1 1,995.00 of the abovc-rcfcrcnecd contract
amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because ofU.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) gram guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Wcalhcrization Assistance
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for the
Wcalhcrization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical performance delivering the wcalhcrization
program.

OSl is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Wcalhcrizaiion-Assislancc Program,
"funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to wcalhcrizc homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who arc elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSl contracts
with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide wcalhcrization services at the local level.
OSl estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to Now Hampshire will eoniribulc to the wealhcriy.ation
of approximately two hundred and two (202) homes in the State.

TOD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 .
C&C 06/24/2020



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

June 1,2020-
Page 2 of2

'ITic requested advance of funds will enable Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. to operate the program
between monthly reimbursements from the Slate, and may only be used for allowable program expenses as
detailed in lExhibit C.

In the event Federal Funds arc no longer available, General Funds will not be rcqiicslcd to support this
contract.

Rcspectfurtivsubmitted,

^  N

Jared Chicoinc

Director

Attachments

G&C 06/24/2020



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/20F9)

Notice: This agreement acid al) of iu stUtchmcuis shnll become public upon submission to Govcn)or and
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnAtion that is private, confidential or proprieiaiy mtist
be clcarlyidcniificd'io the agency and agcted (o in wTiiing prior lo signing the contract.

.AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually aerce as followx:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

r. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name ^
Oritcc ofSlrutegic Initiatives

1.2 Stale Agency Address
107 Ple&.sant Slrtici, Jolutson Hall

iConcortl, New Hampshire 03301
'i

1.3 Conlrnctor Name I
Southern New Hampshire Scmces, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Pine Street, Manchester. NH'

1.5 Conuvctbf-Phdiic:

Number

:  ̂ (603)668-8010

'-1.6 AccbuiU Number:

01:02^2f024010-.7706000d^
5M587

1 i7;C6mplcii6n Date"
Junc"3();^2021

1.8 P.ricc Limitation"

5668,522.00

'  1.9 Contracling OfTiccr for. State Agency
f Kirk Stone, Wcaiherization Program Manager

I.lO-.Slaic Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-2155

1,^.11 (ponireciorEignatUM " 1.12 Name nhdTltlc:ofC6riiroctor Signatory "
D.oniialoe Lozcau, Executive Director,

" 1.'14"*Naiherarid "Title of Slate Agency Sighatory'"'" ■

I.l.SyApprrival by the N!H. Departmcnt.bf Aidministiaii.oo. ptvisiohlpfPcTsdhncl (i/dpplicdbic) '

■7r ';By: Director. On:

■ 1.16"' Approval by the, Attohicy,GcntTB|(FbrTni Sut^aiiiee and Execution)

;1.17 jApprav^^by^Jjc OoveniorafidlExticutive CoiwcU

Page I of 4
Conlraclor Inilials

Dale



1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, aclipg (hrpugb ̂ e agency Identified in biock '1.1
("State'*), engage contractor identified in block 1.3
("ControcloO to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified-and more-paiticularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B wbich is ihcorporatcd
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECnVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3. ) Notwithstanding, any provision of'this Agreement'to (he
contrary, and subject to (he approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifapplicable,
this Agreement arid all obligations oftbe parties hereuitd^, shall
become effective on the date 'the Governor and Executivci
Council approve this Agreement as- indicated in block i:!?;.-
unless.no such approval-is required, m which case the Agreemeru
shall become .effective oa.the date ihe.Agrecment ts signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1 .13 ("Effective Date?).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to (he
Effective Date; all. Services perfonned by ihe.Corttractor prior (b
the Effective Date shall be perforrned at the sole risk of. the
Ccntra^or, and in-fhe event that this Agreement does not become,
effective, the :S(ate shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the.
Contractor for any costs incurred or -Services -p^ormed.
Contractor must conq^lete all Services by the Completion .Date
specified io.block.1.7.

4.. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding mty provision, of this Agreement to the
contrary, ail obligations of the State bercunder,- including,
without^limitation, tbe continuance.of payments hereunder.-are
contingent upon the availability and contioued-appropriatibn of
.funds affect^ by-ahy-^state or federal, legislative orcxccutive
action that .reducies, eliminaies or olherv.'iise modifies-, the
appropriation or.avaiJebilily of.funding for this! Agreement and*
the Scope for Services.'provided in ̂ GflBrr'B, in whdle.or 'io
pail; lit ho. event ̂ 11 the State, be liable for any parents
.berexindtf. in excess of sxrch available appropriated fub^. In the
cyenl of a reduction or tierminatioh of apprbpnated fuinids, (he
State shall ha^ the right to withhold payment until such fuitds
become available, if.ever, and shall have the rî  (b-feduce or
tqhiuitt'te-'the Services under.-this AgreemebV;irf^r^iately-up6n
;giyiiigrtte Cohtraciofhotice of itducliph or (ermination..
Thb Stale shL^.l. npt be're^red (6 transfv funds'from any other
foccount or .source to the Account , idmtified .in. block .1.6 in the
-.eyehl fuiu^ ih.that.-Accounli aj^ liduc^ orunayailable.

S. CONTRACT PRICE/PRlCE LIMrrATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 T^.cbhtract price, method ofpaymehti and!termsbf^yment
•are Idehtiried and more, pafticulvly de^*bed.in EXHIBIT. C
vi^ch is ihcoiporated'berein by reference.
.5.2 liic^psymcht by the State ;of the Mhirect.p'rice.-shall be-the
only and in complete reimbuhsemimt to the Cbntiaclor for all
.expenses, of w^tever notitfe incurred by the Contia.ctpf in. the
perfonhance hereof^ and-shall be the only and the complete

compensation to ihe-^ntiactor for the Services. The State slull
have DO liability to'the Cootrector other than the contiaci pricci
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amoimis
-otherwise payable to-(he Contractor under this Agrcemcricthose
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA '80:7
through-RSA 80;7-c;or- any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement, to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized^-'or actually made
beicunder, exceed the Price.Limitaiioo set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OiPPORTUNrtY.
'6.1. In connection with (he perfonnarice .of the' Services, (be-
Contractor ^11 comply -with all applicable staUites, Uws.
regulations, and ortlcrs of federal, state, county or :municipal
-authorities which impose any obligalioo or duty upon (he
Contractor, including, but iMt limited to, civil rights and equal
en^loyment opportunity laws. In.addilion, if this Agreement.is
funded.in any part by tnonies of the United States,- the Conitractor
sball.conply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations ami-guidelines as the
State or the-United States issue (o implement these regulations:
ThciContracior-shall also comply, with all.tqiplicable-mtellectual
property laws.
6.2 During.the term of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall ndi-
discriminate against employees or applicants, for employment
bccause.of race, color, religion,icreed, age; sex,-handicap, sexual
orientation, ornational orij^andwUl take afftrmative a^on (b
prevent such discrirninatioa
6.3. The CoDtractor agrees to pennit the Siate^or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books,'records andiaccouDts.for
the purpose ofiasccrtalnihgcompliarKe with all ruliesj regulations
artd orders, and. the- covenanis, terms and conditions of (his
AgreemenL

7. FERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at'its. own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perfortn the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all persormel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perfonn the Services, and shall be prppeHy licensed aitd
otherwise.authorized to. do so under.all-qpplicable.laws.
-7.2. Unless otherwise authorized in vmting, during (be^tenn of
(his A'gitemerit, and for a period of six (6)',inobths;efier the
Cbn^l^oo Dale to block'1.7. the Cbntractbr shail;Q0t hire, and
shall not permit any subcbhlractor or -other person; firm; or
coqMretibo with whoni It .-is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person whb.'is a State enq>loyee
or official, who-is-materially involved In (he procurement,
admini^tibn or perforinan^. of (his AgreemenL This
proytsioh shaU.survi'ye teniitnation of this. AgreemenL
?:3.The.Contracting Officer specified in bibck 1.9, or.his or.ber
successor, shall .be'(he'Sia(c|s..i:^re$enuttive. In the;eyent of any
dispute conceraing the iht'erpretation of. this Agreement, (be
Contracting Oflicef's dec.ision shall be.ftoal for the S.tate.
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8, EVH^ OP pEFAULt/REM|^
8.1. Any one .or more pr the fpllb«nng acts or oinissiphs .of the
GoQtFBCtpr siuill'.cpnstiute w event ofdeCauli bereunder ("Event
ofDefBult"):
'8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;.
8:1.2 (aUure tb.submit any report required bereunder,.and/OT
'8. i .3 failure to' perform any other covenant, term or coridiilpn'.pf.
this Acreen^L,
'8.2'Upon.ibe'occunencc'oran'y.Event of Default,;th.e'Slate'ri:uy
take any one. or,inore,-or all. of Ihe-followins actions: ,
8.2.1 give the ̂ ntrrctor a written notice apecityinig the Event of
Default and'requiririg it to be reix^i^ within, in abscpcc of
a:g^ter or'lesser specification oflimc, thirty (30) days'from ihe^
diate of.the boiice;-Bnd<if the Event of Default is not tjmcly cured,
terminate (his Agreentefit, e£r^vc two (2) days after giving .the
(^tractor police of terrninatiimi
8:2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and su^}Oiding all payments to be made undjer. (his
Agreement and ordering that (he portion of (he :cootr6c( price:
which -would otberwiw accrue to (he Contractor during the
period .&om'ibe-date of such.notice until such lime as the^State
determines that (he Contractor has cured'-the Everit?of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor
8.23 gi>« (be'Coatracior a wriitten notice specifying'ihe Event of
Default-and-set-oflf against any other obligations the Slate may
owe to the Contractor any damages the.State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default; treat the Agreement as breached, terminate (be.
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8:3. No faihue by the State to enforce any provisions hereofafter
tmy'Evenl of Default shall bedisemed.a waiver of Its rights with
regard to (hat Event- of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No.express failure to eniforce.any Event of Default shall
bc'deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any. further or other Event of
Dcfault .on.-the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9:1 Notwithstanding, paragraph .8, (he State may. at :its sole
discretion; terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thifiy (30) days written notice to the Contractor (hat
the State:is'exercising iis.^tion to terminate the. Agreement
9.2 In the. evuil of an early te^'naiion of this Agreement for
;aDy reason -other than (be completion of the Services, the
Contractor- shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
CoDtnctiog Officer, notlater than fiflisen (IS) days after the date
of termination, o r^n C^aminaiioo Reporf) describing in
.detail all Seiyices performed, add-the contiaccprice earned, to
-arid including the date.of lenhina'tiba. The form, subject matter,-
coriienl, and number of copies of (he Termination Report-shall
bejdientical io those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B.:lo addition, 8t:lhe Statels discretion, the Contnctor
shall, vrithio 15 days of odtJce of early termination, develop and

'submit to the Slate a 'Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement

Id. pATA/AG.CESS/CONFlDENT!AjutY
PRKERVATION.

ip:l As:used;io (his Agreeoienti the ̂ rd *'dala"sh^.l mean all
informaUon and things deyeioped-orpbtained during the
pafonnaoce of, or acquired or developed by reason of, .this
Agreement, including, but iipi Houted to, all stupes, reports,
files, formulae, suryeys;.mapsicharta. sound recprd.iitgs, video,
lacordings; pictorial reproductiOQS;.drewings, analy:^ graphic
represerualicns, computo' programs, computer printouts,,notes,
l^ers; memoranda, papers, ud documents, all whether
finished or unfii^bed.
iO/2 All data and dny-properry wbieh Has beeo-received fiom
the State or purchased with funds provided-for that purpose
utxler this Agreement, ̂ ll be'the property of the St&(e;.ajul
shall be returned to-the State'upon demand or upon tennination
of.this Agioement for any reason.
10.3 Confideniialifyof data shall be governed byNN. RSA

■ch^(er.9l-Aor other existing law: Disclosure of data requires
-priorwritten approval of (he State.

i 1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In.lhe
perfonnaiKe of this Agreement the Contractor is in dl respects
en independeni contractor, and is -neither en agent nor arr
-enqrloyee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or merobera shall bave.'authority. to
bind the State.or receive any benefits, workera' compcnsatibo or
other emoluments.provided.by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegation/subcontracts.
12.1. The Cbntracbr shall notiassign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Siate-at least, fifteen (15) days prior, to
the-assi^unent; and a- writ^ conseni'of the State.. For purposes
:of this paragraph, a Change of'Control shall- constitute
assig^enL "Change of Contror means (a) merger,.
.consolidalion,-or'8 tmnsaction.or-series of related-bansacUcna in
which a third .party, together- with' its affiliates, becomes the:
direct or- iftdirect. owner of fifty percent .(50%) or more of the
voting'.shares or'similar equity interests,, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or(b) ihesale of all or-substantially aJI
bf.lhe assets of tbe.ContrBctOT.
12.2. N6ne.br-the Services shall be subcontracted by the'
Contractor without prior wriaen.notice and coasenl:of the State.
The.'State is'.entitled to copies of all siibconlracts and-assignment
agreements and shall not be boimd by arty provisions-contaihed
in.a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which'.it is not a.
party.

'13. indemnification! Unless otherwise exempted by. law,,
the Coritractbr.&hall .indemnify and hold harmless-'the State, its-
officers and employees; from'and against, any and .all claims;
UabiUties and costsifor any personal injury or property damages;
patent or copyright in(rtngemeni,.or other claims asserted against'
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts- or omission, of the
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Contractor, .or subcontract, mcludtns but riot limited to; the
a^ligeocc{ luckless or imenUorul conduct- The S.iale ibell pot
be liatilc.fof wy costs inctin^ by'l^c Contractor arising under
this paragraph i 3. Notyo.t^tanding' ̂ e roregoiag,.DOthins.hercin
coritaioed'shali be deemed tq'cpnstitute a wuycrof^e sovereign
immuftity ofthc Stale; which lnimuDity'is.ltby reserved to the
State, llus' covenant in para^^h 13 shall survive the
terminaUon ofthis.Agreement,

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The rCbntractbr shall, el its spi.e expense, obtain and
continuously maintain .in force, and s^ll. require any
fiubcontractor or assignee to obtaia.apd maiatain/in force, the.
following insurance:
M.l.i'conunerdal.gencraJ liability insurence ageinst ail claims
of bodily injury, disath or propeily damage,. in.amounts of.not.
less.'than Sl.OOO.OOO'pcr occurrence and S2,0P0,0Q0 aggregate
orocess;'and
i4.l.2.special cause of lbss coverage form covering all property
subject to:subparegre{A-10.2'^berein. io'an amount not less (han-
80% oftbcvuiiole reptftceinentvaluc-or-the;prop!a^i
14.2-Thcpoliciesde^l)edinsufaparagrapii M.i hereinsbailbe
on policy forms and eDdorsemeots approved'for use in the State
of New HainpsHire- by the N.H. Oeparimeni of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licGttsed in the Slate of New Hampshire.
14.3 Tbe Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting. Officer
identined in.block 1.9,-or;his or her successor, a^certificale(s) of
insurnncf for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall aJso;furTush to the.ConbncUng Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiCcate(s) of'iasurance
for ail rencwalfs) of insurance required unda this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certinc8te(s) of insurance and any
renewals (hereofshall be attached and ore incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 .By signing this.agreement.-the Contractor agrees, certiffes
-and warTants.that.tbc Cbntractor.is in cotnpliancc with or exempt
.froin,,the reqiiircmcnis ofN.H. RSA chapter 281'A ("Wor^n-
Comptnsdiion ").
1S.-2 To. (he-extent the Contractor is subject tOtthe requireraerits
of. N.U. RSA. chapter 281-A, Conuactor shall, maintain, and
require any subcontractor-or assignee, to secure and -maintain,'
payment of; Workers' Cbrnpensation in- connection with
activitieswluch.thie person prepbses to undeiiake pursuaht-.lo this
AgreeraeriL The CodtrtctorshaH funusb the Contracting Officer
idehlifted-ih block ! .9. m.!his.or her successor, proof-of Workers'
Compensation in the mahnef- described in N!H. RSA chapter
281rA and any applicable rene.wdl(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are ihoarporeted. herein by reference. The Stale
shiW .not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Cdm'pen^tion premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Cohlrociof, Of: any $ubc.6hiract6r or employee of Contractor,
which rriii^i arire under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Com'pe'rtsatioi) lows in coonecUon with (he
performance of the Services under this AgrcemcnL.

16. NO'iiC.E Any notice .by a.pairty hereto to the other party
shall be dccmed to have been duly delivered or given at tlM-iime
of oullmg by'certified.ma.il,.postage prepaid, in.a Uoited'States
'Post O^ce addfesMd to .(_he .p^ies at the addresses given in
blocks i.2.aM 1.4, herein^

17. AMENDMENT. *11115. Agreement tnay be am^ded, waived
or (fischaig^ only by an im>VWnent.m writing signed .by the
pi^es hereto ami only affer approval of such ametidmei^
waiver or discharge byllK Governor and Executive Council of
the Spite ofNew Hampshire uideu no sucb approval is required
-under-the.circuflisumces pursuant to S.tate law, ruie.or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and .'cbnstrxi^ in accordance with the'
laws of thc'S'tate'of New-Hampshire, and 'is bmding.upoo.and
inures to'the benefit'of t^ partis and their respective successora-
land Bssignf- 1^ wording.iisedih this Agracment is ibewording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent^-and no rule
ofconstjuction shall be applied a^inst or in favor ofany.party.
Any.-actions arisingjout of this Agreement-shall be brou^t .and
.maintaioed<in:New.'Hanipshire Superior Court vdiich shall have
exclusive'jurisdiction thereof.

19. GONFLIGTING -terms. In the event of a conflict'
between the terms of this P-Zi form (as modified in EXHIBrr-
A) and/or attachments and amendment.thereor, the terms of the
P-37 (as oiodified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. imiU) PARTIES: the parties, hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and. this -Agreement shall -not be
construed to confer any sucb.benefiC

21. . HEADINGS. The-beadings'throughout the Agreement are.
for reference purposes only, and the words contained tbertin
shall in no'way.bc.beld.to explain, modify,- amplify or aid in the
interpretBtioT\,-construction or- meaning ofibe provisions of this
Agreethent.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS; Additional or modifying
proyisions'set.forth-io the attncbed'EXHIBrr-A are incorporaled.
herein by reference.

23.. SEVERABILITY. In the event anyof the provisions of this.
Agreeroent.-are held by a court of conq>etcnt jurisdiction to be
contrary-to aoy-state of federal law,'theiremaining-provisioDS of
this.Agreemerit will remalD.in full-force and effecL

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemcnt, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an origiiial, constiti^ ibe emlre agreement end
understa^nding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
a^eements ond understandings with respect to the subjoclmatter
hereof. '
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 BS amended (Uoirorra Administrative .Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards), 10 CI^ 440 dated February 1, 2002 CWcatherization Assistance Program), the New
Hampshire Wcatherization Assistance Program State Plan, Weatherizalion Assistance Program Policies and
Prpcedurcs, and Field Guide are all considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this
contract. OSl reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to,
disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency personnel, disbarment of agency
personnel.-disbarment'of agencies and/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other
legal remedies as deterrnined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice in the
enforcement of rules and' regulations pertaining to the WeathCrization Assistance Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal y^ In a.ccordaoce with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F •
Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by
contract or grant nurhbcr of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall
utilize a cpmpetitive biddiog process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit report shall include a scheduleof prior year's questioned costs along with.a response to the current
status of the piHor yearns questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written as .a result, of the'audit
along with the audit rq>on shall be forwardied to OSI within one month of the time of receipt by the
Contractor accompanied by-an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost

3. The fpllowing paragnph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9:4 All negotiated contracts (excq)t those of S5,CK)0 or less) awarded.by the Subgrantee shall allow OSI,
DOE, the (^mptroller .General ofthc United States,.or any duly authorized representatives, access to any
books, documents, papers, and records of the Subgi^tec or their subcontractors, which are directly
pertinent to the Weatberization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits, examinations,
excerpts and transcription."

4. .In paragraph 10 of the general provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted: The form, subject matter,
content, and number, of cdpies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in EXHmrr A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles detailed in 2
CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records.peiuiriing to this contract shall be retained by the Contractor for 3 (three)
years frorh (he date of submission of the final expenditure rqrort or, for awards that are renewed quarterly or
annually, from the date of the'submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, as stated in 2
200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records.

7. Kirk Stone, Wea^eriution Program Manager of OSI, has been designated with'.the responsibility for'
overseeing this contract,
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8. The f611o«dbg paragraphs shall be added to the geocral provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDmONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties that no
portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for (he purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under
any other law of the United Slates, except if authorized.under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding
Drug-Free Worlcplace Requirements; CertiHcation Regarding Lobbying; CertificatioD Regarding
Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With
Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of
Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and CertiHcation Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KJCKBACK ACT. All contracts and sub^ants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Klckback" Act (18
use 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR^ Part 3). This Act providcs
that each contractor, subcontract.or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any
person employed in theiconstruction, completiOQ or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which ho is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should repon.all suspected violations
to OSI."

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CTR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial
procurement ( 2 CHI 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200
Subpart 0 - Post. Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards)"

"29. CLOSE OUT OF COhTTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within sixty (60) days of the completion date (Agmment Block 1.7)."
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc., hereinafter '"the Conlractor" or "Subgranlec," agrees to perform
weatherization services and all additional services and other work necessary to provide Weatherization
Assist^ce Progriun (WAP) services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with the regulations set
forth by the U. S. Department of Energy in 16 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002, and In 2 GFR' 200 as
amended, ̂d.tn accordance witb'the provisions and procedures contained in the most recent New Hampshire
Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Pl^ Policies and Procedures Manual, Field Guide, and
as otherwise administered by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSO.

Periodically OS! may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SO) and Subgrantee Notices (SN) or other clarifications as
necessary. All such changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weatherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The Cbntntctor agrees to alter the Program procedures in accordance-
with a SG, SN or other instructions.

The Subgrantee agrees to abide by changes in the NH Weatherization Assistance Program designed to
improve program delivery and further aigrees to perfomt Weatherization Program services in a manner that
will success^lly interact.with utility administered energy erftciency programs for low-income; households in
order to provide ̂ e ,b«t.scrviccs, for Ne:w Harhpshirc's low-income households.

'2. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2020 (PY20). will commence on July 1,2020 and will
•have a completion date of June 30,2021, subject to the approval of Governor and Executive Council.

3. Plans for expenditure of funds for Training and Technical Assistance, Program Implementation, and
Leveraging Activities must be deftned in the Contractor's Management Plan (CMP) and epproved.by OSI
Requests to deviate.Crpm the plan miist be niade in writing in advance, and approved;by OSI as prescribed in
the NH Policies and Procedures Manual.

4. In PY20. Contractor agrees to complete Weatherizatioh Services on eighty (80) dwelling units according to
the standards outlined Ip the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and Procedures M.anuaJ and Field
Guide.

(a) Weatherization Services are ihtendcd.to increase the energy efficiency of the home, and to improve the
home's comfort and safety. A qertlficd energy auditor first performs a.NHWAP energy audit on the
home using-scientific test equipment. Specific energy conservation measures and heating;5ource repairs
are then in^lemented in order of priority and cost eftecliveness. This integrated activity is carried out in
accordance with provisions and procedures outlined in the most recent NH Policies and Procedures

- Manual and Field Guide.

(b) The minimum number of dwelling units and the amount of fiinds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract and-sh^l -be incorporated into the CMP. Deviations of more, than 20% from
expected.dwelling unit goals in any given quarter may result in a reduction of the contract amounts and a
reallocalioQ.of fimds to other coniractors.

5. In accordance with the US DOE's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of Weatherization
Program" Notice (WPN) 15-4
nitlD:/Avw\v.waDtac.org/data/fijcs/Website docs/Govemment/Guidance/2014/WPN-l5-4.Ddf>. beginning
April 1, 2015, Contractor must have regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality
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Control Inspectoits). available as either staff or contractbrs, able to fully function in that capacity. This
contract provides.fiinding for continued training and technical assistance sufficient to allow the.Contractor to
secure and.mainlain the skilled persoanel necessary to meet the rcquircraents of WPN 15-4.

6. All work pcrfonncd under the Wealherization Assistance Program (WAP) in New Hampshire, using federal
money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum specificalions defmed in the US Department of
Ener^'s '^Quality WoHc Plan" (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). .Details are
presented in the Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home ̂ergy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weatherization Program Notice l S-4 (see link in paragraph 5, above), as well as in the New Hampshire
Wealherization Assistance Program's Field Guide, as most recently amended, which governs WAP work in
New Hampshire. Contractor must ensure, and be able to document for OSl, that all staff and contractors who
will perform Wealherization work are properly trained and certified for that work and have been informed
that their work must meet the requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete end
reimbursement will not occur.
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory perfonn^ce of the Services, the Stale agrees to pay the Contractor, Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc., in total, the sum of;

S 668.522.Q0 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amouiit"), of which
S  39,254.00 may be expended for Administration,
$ 46,937.00 may be expended for Training & Technical Assistance,
S  22,357.00 may be expended for Health & Safety measures.
S 559,974.00 (the balance), to be.spent oh weatherization activities (Program Activity) and.
S 111,995.00 will be issued as a cash advance.

Dmwdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to OSI. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be made

iri accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an.advance basis;
limited to minithum amounts needed; and.be tiihiBd to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash
requirements, of the Contractor, in carrying out thc.purpose of the program. The Contractor must make
timely payments to (sub) contractors in accordant;with the contract provisions. Contractor shall
submit a payment request to OSI for each month of the contract period. Payment requests from.
Contractor shall be received at OSI no later than the 15^ day of each.month, or the first business day
following the IS"*day.

Administrative costs are provided, to cover a specified numbvof unit cbmplelions at miouhal stahdaids.
Administrative funds may be pro-rated by OSI if production imit completions do not meet expected production
goals.

OSI may, as a function of its administrative oversight, modify contracted budget amounts as necessary to ensure
the efTjcienl operation of the NHW AP as long as these modified expenditures do not exceed the Contracted
Amount total as specified above. '

All obligations of the State, including the coDtihuance of any payments, arc conlingeot upoo the availability and
continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The CoQtraclor idenUncd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151 -5160 of the Dnig-Frce WorIq)lace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.)i and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12.of
the General Provisions-execute the following Certification:

CERTinCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certincation is required by the regulations implementing Sections SI S1-S160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C, 70.1 ct scq.). The January.3,1, 1989, regulations
were.amended.and published as Part Oof the May 25,1990. Federal Register (paces 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by uiference, sub-grantees and sub-contractoirs), prior to award|,-lhat.lhey will
maintain a dnig-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulatioo provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to niake one certification to the Department in each
federal Hscal year in lieu of.certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificatiob.
The cenificate set out below Is a material lepresehlalion of .fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds, for suspension of payments,
suq>asioD or termination of grants, or government wide susp^ion' or debarmeht. Contractors using tUs form
should sendit to:

Director, New Hampshire O^ce of Strategic InitialivcSi
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall,.Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it.will or will continue to provide a drug-free worlqplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying.cmployees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
diispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grahtoe's workplace
and speci^ng the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing en. ongoing.drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers ofdnig abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-ifiee woriqplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each eiifiployee to be-engaged in the perfonnaDce of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a), that, as a condition of
employment under the gram, the employee wilt^

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his orber conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN JNDIVIDUALSi copt'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US department of homeland security

(e) Notifying the agency in wnting, within ten calendar days after receiving nottce.under
sut^aragrapb (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. -
Employers of convicted eniployees must provide notice; including'position title, to every grant
ofHcer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fiederal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such.notices. Notice shall include the
identihcation number(s) of each affected grant;

(if) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with.respect to any einployee who Is so convicted—

\

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action again^ such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent.with (he requirements of the Rchabiiitatioo.Act ofi973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drugrfree woriq)lace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (0-

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided belo.w the site(s) for the pcrfotThBnce of woric done in
connccliod with the.specific grant

Place of.Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) Oist each location)

40 Pine Street

Manchester; NH

Check CD workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Donnalee.Lozc^u, Executive Director
Name and Titlebf Authorized Coniractor Representative

19-^^
Contractor Rcprcwntative Signature /pate
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

ThC'Cont^ctor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to.have the Contractor's representative, as.identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisioos execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMlj^T OF Ef^RGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program.covered):
Coimnunity .Services Block Gr^t
Low-lncoroe.Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program

WeatberizatioD AssiiUace Program

Contract Period: July 1,2020 - June 30,2021
The imdefsigDed.cerlifies, to the best of his or herknowledge and belief^ that:

(1) No Federal a{^rppriated funds havebMn paid or wit! be paid by of on behalf of the undersign^, to any
person for iofluencihg of attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with'the awarding of any PederBl contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modiflcation-of any
Federal contract, grant, loon, or cooperative agreement (and by specifiCifnention sub-grantee or sub^
contractor).

(2) If any fundsi.other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or anempting to mfluence an officer or employ^ of ̂ y .'agency, a Member of Congress, on
officer of employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract-,.grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by'speciric-mcbtidn sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL/'Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, inaccordance with'its instructions, attached and idchtifled as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be ihcliided .in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contmcts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients.sball certify an'd disclose accordingly.

This certification is a .material representation of fact upon which reliance .was placed when this transaction was
made.or entered, into. Submission of this certification is a preraquisite 'fbr maldog or entering into this transaction
imposed bv'Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of.not less than $10,000 and not more than Si00,000 for^ch such failure.

'Mr- Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director
flractor. Representative Signature Contractor's Repre^tative Title

Southern New Hampshire:Services, Inc.
Contractor Name A Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contrscior identified in Section 1.3 of the General ProNnsions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Ordq" 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILirY MATTERS - PRIMAKV COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospectivepriraary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to providcthe certiGcation required below; will not necessarily result,In denial of
paiticipatioo in this covered Uansaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the.certiflcaGon. The certiGcation or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH OfGce of Strategic initiatives (OSI) determination whether to enter into this transaction .
Howiever, failure of the prospective pnmaiy paiticipant to furnish a ccitincation or an explanation shall
disqualify such person from participalioo in this transaction.

(3) The certiGcation in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was pieced when OSI
dctennlned to enter mto this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective primary paiticipant
knowingly rehdered-an erroneous certiGcation, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, OSI may terminate this tran^ction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective priroaiy'p^cipaht.learns that its certiGcation
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circums^ces.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "incligible,""lowcr tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the ineanings set out in the DeGnitions and CoS^ge.scctioiis ofthe rules
implementing Executive Order i 2549:45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospeclivc primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transactioii be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI.

(7) The prospective.primary paiticipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that-it will , include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusipii - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions/' provided by OSI, without modification, id all lower tier covered transactions and in
all sojicitatioru. for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a ccrtificaripn.of a prospective participant in a lower tier
cpver^ .transaction (hat it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it.knpws that the certiGcation is.erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it'delcrmines the eligibility of its principals. Each pai^cipant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in.the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a'system of records in order
to render in-good faith the certlGcaGon required by this clause. The knowledge and information.ora
participant is not r^uired to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineli^ble, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transacGon, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER

RESPONSrerLITY MATTERS - PRIMARV COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Rap.onsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) ^ pot presently debari^, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have,not wit^ a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract)'been convicted of or bad a
civil judginent fjchdered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal ofTense in connection
with obtainingi attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under, a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, thefr, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a gOYemmental entity
(Fedml, State or local) with commission of any of the ofienses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of t^.certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal, had one or mofe public -
transacliohs (Federal, State or local)-terminated for cause or default.

(2) Wbere.the prospective pHmaiy participant is unable to certify-to any of the.statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification RegardingDebarment, Suspension, IneligibUity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Ldtver Tier Covered Trarisaciions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this.lower tier propo^l (contract),.the prospective lower tier-participant, as defined.in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals;

(a) . are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debanp.ent, declared.ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participatibh in this transaction by any-federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include (his
clause enti led "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineli'gibili(y,.and.V61uhtary. Exclusion • Lower
Tier. Coyer xl Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in aU splicitatibns. for

lower tier ( sv^ed transactiot

z ^  Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director
^C^tractor Rcpitsent^ve: Signature Contractor's RcprescnUtive Title

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc.
Contractor Name n Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contracior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified.in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of.lhe General Provisions, to execute the followiog
certification: ' ■

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americaiis with Disabilities Act of 1990.

L
xl\f>AuiI/JL Donnaiee Lozeau, Executive Director

C^n^ctor Representa(^c Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. rUu
Contractor Name /7 Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103^227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environinqntal Tobacco Smoke, also known as'thc Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of ahy indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, daycare, education, or library services to
children under the age of. 1.8, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local govermocnts, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciliti^ used for inpatient.drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SIOOO per day and/or-the impositibn of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this applicatioit the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with (h'e
requirements of the Act.

The; applicant/grantee further agrees, that it will require the language of this certification be included.in any
subawards which contain.provisions for the children's services and.that all subgrantees shall-cerlify accordingly.

Doiuialee Lozeau, Executive Director

ctor Rcprescni^yc Signature

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

/f-
Contrector'Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFHCE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTOENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINAtlON IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

OMB.Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reportmg burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
Includmg the lime for reviewing Instnictions, searching.existing data sources, gathering and maintainiog the data
needed, and ccmpleting-and reviewing the colleciion of informaiion. Send coiunents regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collectipo of.ihformatioh, including-suggestions for reducing this burdeti, to
OfTice of InfoTmatioD Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Dfepartmeht of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office ofMaoagemcnt and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Soutbeni New. Hampshire Servlces. Xnc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Title VI ofthe Civil Rights Act.of 19M (^b. L 88-352), Section 16'of the Federal Energy Administration
Act of 1974 (Pub, L. 93-275), Section 401 pfthc Energy Reorganization Act of 1974.(Pub. L. 93^38), Title DC
of the Education Amebdments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482),
Section 504 ofthe Rehabilitation Act ofI973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Piib. L. 94-
135), Title vniof the Civil.Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of
1977 (Pub. L. 95-9)), thC'Encrgy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and".
Title 10; C^e of F^lerai Regulations, Part.1040. In accordance with the'above laws.and regulations issued
pursuant theroto, the Applicant agrees: to assure that no person in the United States shall; on the ground of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be.denied.the benefits of. or be
o.therwise subjected tp.discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant receives Federal
assistance.frorn the Dqiartmeni of Energy.

Applicability and Period.of.ObligadOQ
In the case'of any service, ftnancial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided,.leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the. Applicant by the Department of Ener^, this.assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In .the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or stiucturo, this.assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is-so provided, this assurance obligates .Uie
Applicant for the period during which it retalns-ownership or pqsse^ion of the property. In all other cases, thii
assunmce obligates the Applicant for tbe-period during which the Federal assistwce is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is lb provide-employment or where the Applicant's
employrneot practices effect the delivery of.seryices'iif.progfam's or activities resulting from-Feideral assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the-ground of race, color, riatioDal
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, biring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use .of facilities.

Subrcdplcnt Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, o.rganization, or other entity'with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
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subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms,

Data CoUectioD and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile end maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance fiom the Depanment-of Energy. Such informatioa shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services ore or will be provided and related
data nixessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment includirig use.or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable lo.speak or
understand English; (^) Uie location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
infonnatioD adequate for detennining whether the location has or will havc:thc cDcct of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimirution; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any plonning or advisory body which.is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to.the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use ofFederaJ assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and otl^ sources of iafcrmalioo pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made av^ble for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director^ Office of Civil Rights^ U.S. Dq>anineot of Energy.

This assurance is given' in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contrads (excluding-procuremenl contracts),, property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended afi.er the
date hereof, to xht Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after
such data of appUcation for-Pederal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliant uppn the representations and agreemdits
made in this assurance, and that the United Stales shall havc.the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
persoD(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has compliedi or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Applicant upon written
request to DOE). • yj /
Donnalcc Lozcau, Executive Director Signature Date fMdlmo
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. \ l ^
40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH
603-688-8010
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NEW HAMPSHfRE OFHCE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING

ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Acxounlabilily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardces of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,()00 and awarded on or af^er October 1, 2010, to
report, on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below S2S,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or
over S25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA.reportLng requirements, as of the date of the award.

in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subanvrd and Executive .Compensation Jnformation), the
New Hampshire Office of Str^egic Initiatives murt report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

i ) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFD A program number for grants
•5) Program source
6) Award title descnplive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the CTitily (DUNS <0
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal gdvemment, and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually end

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data.by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

Hie.Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The.Federal Funding Accoimtability and Transparent^ Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Piort \70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections l.l'l and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
HaropsbirdDfTice of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability aqd Transparency Act.

Donnalee Lozeau, Executive'Director

(Contra^or^epresentative Si^ture) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Southern"New Hampshire Services, Inc. jtjm.
(Contractor Name) , (Date)

a.

Contractorioiti.lj: ̂
Date: S
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are tnie and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 088S8406S

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal ye^,.did your business or organization.
receive(l)'80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements;'and .(2) $25,000,000 or more io.annual gross revenues
from' U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperetJve agreements?

NO X YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following: .

3. Does the public have-access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through penodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U;S.G.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO ' JC YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3.al>ove Is NO, please answer the following.:

4. The names and compensation of the five most hl^y compensated-oBicers in your business or
organization arc as follows:

Nanoe: . Amouol:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

initials:Contractor i
Date: UtlLf
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. William M; Ctrdncf, Secrtttry of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOHTHERN.NEW

HAMPSHIRE SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to trensoct.buslhess In.New Hampshire on

May 28, 1965.1 further certify that all feca and documents required by the Secretary of State'a office have been received and is in-

good staixlins as fv as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificstc Number 000491306S

Op
6f.

&He

lA.

d

%

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto ki my'h^.and cause to be affixed

the Seal of.tbe State of New Hampshire,

this 12th day of May. A.D. 2020.

William M. Ovdner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

I, OrvilleKerr Clcrk/Sccrclary of Southcm New Hampshire Services. Inc.
(tume) (Coq)onlicm nsmc)

(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corooration. hereby certify that:. (1) I am the duly
(na«)

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary ofthe Corporation;'(2) I maintain end have custody and am familiar with the
minute boOlcs ofthe Corporalioo; (3) I.am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on September 7.2019. such authority

O tiUte)
» O I ^0 ot 1 .

(concrtct'tenninition dale)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation luiy contract or oth^ instrument for the sale of products and services;

Donnalee Lozeau Ej^ecmjve Piryt^r
(name) (position)

Jarhes Chais^h Chief Fiscal OfTicer
(name) (position)
Rvan Clouthier Deoutv Director

(name) (position)
Ron Ross Housing Fiscal Officer

(name) (position)

(5) the meeting of thc Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(state of inporpofition)

law and the by'laws of the Corporation; ei^ (6) said authorization Has not been modified, amendedior rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN wiTNKS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary^the-IN vyinESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set ir/9^av of MAy , 20^.

Clerk/Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
cioUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

thisCO

On this day of /K.Ajy 203.^. before me, ^ the.  .

undersigned Officer, personallyappeared Orville Kerr who acknowledged hcr^imself to be
the Secretary of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. ; a corporation and that
she/he as such Secretary being authorized to do so, executed tbc foregoing instrument for the
purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set ray hwd and official seal. y /I

Noi^ Public
OCBRA 0. STOKRER

Ccn,™ssionExpi;a.ionD,.c: _



ACORO'

.  SOUTNEW-12

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DCQMgAU

MiTe (KMAO/WYY)

1/2/2020

THtS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANO CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CER11FICATE.H0L0ER. THIS
CERTIFICATE OOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING.INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. ANO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If dia ctfllDcata hoidaf Is an AOOftlONAL INSURED, tba.peilcy(>M) mutt hava AOOmONAL INSURED prevUlona or bo ondortod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjoct. to tha terms and'eondillena of (ha pdlcy.cartaJn pollclaa may raquira an andorsacnant A.aUtemaht eh
ihla cartlftcsta dees not confar rtohts to tha cartifleato holder In llau of such andoraamehUa).

«iooue«aLJean.ai17«M62
HUB Intaimational New Eftotand
600 Lonflwatar Drfva
Norwall.MA 020ei-9ia

em; (701) 792-3200 \ MS. «o»:(781} 792-3400

waiwenmAfeohoatd cowMCf KAICI

muMMA:Cincinnati Insurance Comoanv 10077

ttviuo

Southam Naw Hanipthira Sarvlcaa Inc.
40 Ptna Straat
Manchaster, NH 03103

Mimrnn-Eastern Alliance Insurance Comoanv 10724

(Ksunrac;

nauaeao:

aJSUSCTB:

MUMRr;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POtXlES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TQ THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR .THE POUCYPEfdCO
P«3tCATED. NOTWrrHSTANOtNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOTTICN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT MTH RESPECT TO VMCH IMS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAM. THE WSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POtXlES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS,
EXauSlCNS ANO CONOfTIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. UMfTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAft<S.

aaa
TVPCoratsuAAHCC

•ooc
iwAn KJn POUCY NUkBOt

raucT w
fi»«*ion»wvi cams

A COWMZXCUU. cusrexAL UASiiiTv

* r^OCOM BTO(M172 57 12/31/2010 12/31/2020

eACHOccuivt^ (  1.000.000

1 CLWM»4M QAM^TOReXTEO K  1.000,000

B  10.000

PTOOHkLSAOVIKiURT B  1,000.000

cgm.AoqttOAT6u>ffr<mjCTneR

1 On*R:

OfHCWtAOOReOATB
B  2,000,000

PR00UCT8. dSMHOP ACO ,  2,000.000

«

A AVTOttOeU UABS/nr

ETA 041 72 « 12ni/2019 12/31/2020

OOMMEO smcLE uurr ,  1,000,000

x_

IT

WTTAUrO

yrouLED
fTO)

adday atAjRv MTMnV a

Booay ikwRY in* •oewmh(

X i

«

A X UMSReUAUAB

excess uas

OCCUR

cueawde ETC 041 72 57 12^1/2019 12/31/2020

FAC« OCCURRFMf*
B  5.000,000

AnnitfnAm
B  5.000.000

oeo i X 1 nerefmONi 10,000 «

B WOnCEIte COttPCKaATKM
Awaim^YtMnJAaaJnr
wry pwcaaigiQai'iMinanwgcvnva rfn

liU

DflySnONnFOFFRAncwt b**.

H/A

9340001121054)2 12/31/2019 12/31/2020
X|5lfn,„l If?-

B  -500.000

fj. ottFASe ■ PA nniuytvi B  500,000

6Lo«eAM.roucyui«T I  soq.ooo

A Profaaalonal Llab. £TD 041 72 57 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 Aggragata $2,000,000 1,000,000

ocscwmoN or omATiOKa/LOCAnoNa/voacLca (acoap iai.»irBiii.aRMwti irtiiiua, aiar a* wwrtiua«er*«pM«a riWa«4
AulomobIJa: tSOO Comprahartalva'Oadwctibla/tl.OOO Collision Deductible

Workari CempantMlon Covtred Slataa (A): NH, ME

NH OfBca of Strategic Inltlattva's
107 Pleasant StraoL Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301

1

BHOULO ANY OF THE ABOVE oeSCRtBED POUCtea BE CANCeiXEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRA-nON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELfVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOaoEo nanuseKTATive

ACORD 25 (2010/03} 01000-2015 ACORO CORPORATIONi AIS rlghU roMrvod.
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government.Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial position as of July 31, 2019, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 12, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we. considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
combined financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
delect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatemeni of the Organization's combined financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Governmenl A udiling Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

OueCktU eiCAssodaUs, <PJL
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine



OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS

Marie R. Carrier. C.P.A. Gary W. Soucy. C.P.A.
MifhaclK.Dunn.C.P.A. Gary A. Wlgam. C.RA.
lonathan A. Hu.wy. C.P.A.. M.S.T. C. lojcph Wolverion. Jr., C.P.A.
Slevcn R. Lamontagnc. C.P.A.

Independent Auditor^s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and AfTiliaic

Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate's compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplemeni that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and afTiiiale's major
federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2019. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's ResponsibUity

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

A udiior's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and affiliate's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and

.affiliate's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal'program.^ However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's compliance. ^
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and affiliate is responsible for establishing and
-maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency,, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and
affiliate as of and for the year ended July 31, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated February
12, 2020, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements. 'Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined
financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the combined financial statements as a whole.

OueSette <iLjissociates,
Certified Public Accountants.

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTllt-KiNNEW IIAMI^SMIKK SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILlATi;

SCIIEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY Jl. 2019

Fedcnl CriDlor

Ptss-throuch Granior
Program or OuHfrTitle

FEDERAL AWARDS

Ftdrral Pas.vTbrough

CFDA - Identifying Subredpirot Federal
Nomber Number Eapenditurea Expcnditurei

U.S. Dfonrtment of Atricullurt:

Pass-Tkr«utk Sialt of Ntv Hompskhe Deponmemof

Heehk omd Human Servtets

WIG Special Supplcmcnial Nutrition Pregram for Women,
infants and Children 10.557

10.537

I84NH705WI003 S

I74NH703WIO0}

S U28.0I<

IU.<92
IJ42,708

PasS'Thtougk Bolknap Merrimack Community Action Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565

10.565

20I8I8YSOOS44

20I919Y800544

100,632

B.609

109,241

Pass-Tkrougk State of Hew Hampskire Departmeni of
Education

Child and Adult Care Pood Program
Summer Food Service Program for Children

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Dertartmenl of llou.<ing and Urbnn Develonment:

Direct Program
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room OccuptUKy

Pass-Through State of Hew Hampshire Department of ■

Heoltk end Human Services

Emergency Solutions Cram Program

Pass-Through Betknep Merrimack Community Action Program

Lead-Based Pant Hazard Control in Privately-Owiwd Housing

Total U.S. Deparlment of llousiag and Urban

Development

Subtotal

10.558

10.559

14.249

14.231 EI7-DC-33-OOOI

14.900

1,046.749

126,951

S $ 2,625.649

$ s 520382

933)04

4,000

s s 617386

s s 33 43.035



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFRUATE

SCHEOULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY J1.2019

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Craotor
Program or Cluster Title

Total U.S. Department of Education

CornoratioB for National "and Commgniry Sen-ices:

Direct Program
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

Total Corporation for National and

Community Scn-kes

Subtotal

Federal

CFDA

Number

. Amount For«'ard

U.S. Denartment of Ijibor:

Pass-Through Stale of New Hampshire Department of
Resources and Economic De%<eiepment

WlOA auster

WIQA Adult Program
WlOA Oislocaicd WorVcr l-ormula Grants

Total WlOA Cluster

Senior Community Service Employment Program
WlOA Youth Activities

WIOa Dislocated WorEcr NaiionsI Reserve

OemonsirBtion Grants -

Total U.S Departmcat of Ijibor

*  S

IJ.S. Derrartment of Energy:

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Governor's Office
Office of Strategic Initiatives
Wcftthcrization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

Total Departmcat of Energy:

U.S. Oertartment of Edoeation:

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department
OfEducation

17.258

17.278

17.233

17.239

17.280

81.042

Pass-Througb
Identifying

Number

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

EE0007933

Subrceipient

Expenditures

S  142.256

135.936

278.192

34.787

Federal

Expenditures

S  3.243,035

S. 1.131.666

tJ79J03

23110.969

247.IS8

13,487

4S9.003

S  312.979 S 3.230.617

S  529J73

S  529J73

Basic Grants to States 84.002 6701l-ADE S S 323)99

84.002 6701 l-ADE I4J08

84.002 6701 l-ABE 19.745

84.002 6701l-ABE 40.555

94.002 I7SRANH002

S $ 106.707

/

$ S 11.5329

S S 115329

S  312.979 $ 732S36I



SOLHIIKKN NKW lUMPSIIlRlilSI-KVICIi^S. INC AND AFFILlATK

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

FrdrnI Cridlor

Pi»-ltiroBgh Cnnlor

Procrtm or Ouster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Identifying

Number

Subrcclpient

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

Amount Forward S 312,979 S 7025.561

llJt. Denartmenl of lieallh and Human 5«er\-lre.<:

Direct Program

Head Sun 93.600

93.600

OICH0I0602-0I

OIHP0009.04

S . S 6,409050

285,097

6.694v447

Pcss-Throagh State of /Vrw Hampshire Office of

Strategic laltiathfes
Low^Incomc Home Energy Assistance 9336S

93.368

93.568

G-I9BINHLIEA

C-l8BiNHLIEA

G.190INHUEA

I0.0S2O78

875047

135,676

II.06300I

Pass-Tkroagh State of New Hampshire Department
OfHeehk and Httmaa Services
Special Programs for the Aging, Tilk III. Pan D. Crams
for Supponivc Services and Senior Centers 93.044 I8AANHT355 13,957

Temporiry Assisuncc for Needy Families 93.558

93.358

20I7C996II3

20ISG996il5

847..413

69,719

2067.424

284041

917032 3,151,465

Community Services Block Grim
Community Services Block Cram Discrclienafy A>k-ar<ds

93.569

93.570

C-I901NHCOSR

G-I7BINHC0SR

1023053

SOOS2

rCDFOusler

Child Care and Ocvclopment Block Grant

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of
The Child Care and Development Fund

93.575

93.396

20I8G996005

20I9C999004

1.129024

1046084

Total CCOF Ouster 2.I76O08

PasS'Throagh University of New Hampshire
Every Stui^t Succeeds Act/Preschool Development Grants 93.434 IH79SM06I289

•

109

Total U.S. Ocpartmcnt ofllealth and
Human Scr>'ices s 917032 s 24,774,092

U.S. Denaiimenl of Homeland SfrBril>*:

Pttssed^hrough Regionai United WayAgen^'
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 s s 5,750

PasS'Through State ofNew Hampshire Governor's Office

Office of Strategic Initiatives
Emergency Fo^ and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 592600-007 s s 11039

Total U.S. Oepaninent of llomeiand Seeurlty s . s 16,989

TOTAL EXPENDITURF^ OF FEDERAL AWARDS s IO30.2II S 32,016,642.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

•NOTE I: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31, 2019. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulalions Part 200, Uniform Adminisirative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and alTiliaie,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate.

note 2; SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule arc reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures arc not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers ore presented where available.

note 3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

In accordance with terms of the grant award, the Organization has met its matching
requirements during the year ended July 31, 2019.

NOTE 4: INDIR.ECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afniiatc has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
9.80% with the Department of Health and Human Services.



SOUTHERJV NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2019

Section I Summary of Auditor^s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

internal control over financial reporting:
Material wcakncss(cs) identified?

Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs;
, Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencyCics) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with CFR Section
200.15o(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

_Ves

_Yes

Yes

Unmodified

V  No

V None reported

V No

_Yes

Yes

_V No

None reported

Yes

Unmodified

V No

Community Services Block Grant
WlOA Dislocated Worker National Reserve Demonstration Grants
Head Start & Early Head Start
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

CFDA Number

93.569

17.280

93.600

93.568

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section II Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reportable.

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

V Yes

$960.500

No
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have, audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire
Services, inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related combined statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that arc. free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

A uditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined finjtncial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally .accepted in the United Stales
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
are free of material misstatement. •

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. Including

■ the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the
Organization's preparation and fair prescniation of the combined financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit alsd includes evaluating.the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

nil Lisbon Street • Lewi.stnn. Maine 04240 . Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 . www.oacpas.net



Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate, as of July 31,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 12,
2020, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not, to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and afTiliale's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

OueSetU ̂Jlssodates,
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31,2019AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS c

Cash S 6,986,538 $ 5,699,842

Investments 8,405,690 9,085,663

Contracts receivable 3,488,413 4,165,520

Accounts receivable 821,565 836,174

Prepaid expenses 95,197 90,163

Under applied overhead - 67,750

Total current assets 19,797,403 19,945,112

FIXED ASSETS

Land 2,697,868 2,571,794

Buildings and improvements 12,530,561 11,610.610

Vehicles and equipment 1,415,271 1,278,185

Total fixed assets 16,643,700 15,460,589

Less - accumulated depreciation 5,237,138 • 4,964,258

Net fixed assets 11,406,562 10,496,331

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 411,580 402,738

TOTAL ASSETS S 31,615,545 $ 30,844,181

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt s 109,413' % 122,582

■  Accounts payable 657,676 458,388

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,045,805 1,102,712

Accrued compensated absences 359,819 345,967

Accrued other liabilities 227,703 238,012

Refundable advances 1,028,743 1,309,098

Over applied overhead 27,739 -

Tenant security deposits 84,231 81,801

Total current liabilities 3,541,129 3,658,560

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion 3,036,025 3,134,219

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,577,154 6,792,779

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 25,038pJ9l 24,051,402

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 31,615,545 30,844,181

Sec independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue S 37,464,614 $ 36,935,915"

Program service fees 907,560 790.570

Local funding 242,894 318,992 .

Rental income 1,191,372 994,930

Gif^s and contributions 208,728 638,712

Interest and dividend income 314,554 271,590

Unrealized gain on investments 12,233 441,314

Miscellaneous 720,124 640,735

TOTAL REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 41,062,079 41,032,758

EXPENSES

Program services:

Child development 8,589,865 8,424,337

Community services 1,530,674 1,449,210

Economic and workforce development 6,984,684 7,756,926

Energy 13,414,281 12,777,365

Language and literacy 436,073 370,697

Housing and homeless 263,240 238,541

Nutrition and health ' 2,527,495 2,486,119

Special projects 1,768,326 1,797,358

Volunteer services 125,050 1 14,704

SNHS Management Corporation 2,396,939 2,017,381

Total program services 38,036,627 37,432.638

Support services:

Management and general 2,038,463 1,770,202

TOTAL EXPENSES 40,075,090 39,202,840

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 986,989 1,829,918

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 24,051,402 22,221,484

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 25,038391 $ 24,051,402

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

A



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2019

PtOKrmtn Service*

Economic Nutrition

Child Community WorVforce Language attd Heusing artd

Devdopnietti ■  Serxiecs Dcvelopmeni Enetgv Ltieracv and Homeless KeaUh

EXPENSES

Payroll $  5.063.755 S  958.969 S  2.792J30 S  1.519.961 S  294,501 S  104.911 S  1.000.035

Payroll laxes 406.991 74306 220.133 124.867 24,800 8.511 80.427

Fringe bencfiis MS0.633 134339 492.014 389.808 26.683 22.106 222341

Workers cotnp. inturance 102.429 8,625 6.948 17.712 736 262 30.682

Retiremcnl bcncfiU 273.637 89327 112.279 89.727 7.851 6,680 62.967

Consultant and coniraaual 37.142 70.228 1.595.405 1.770.887 6,505 654 20.695

Travel and (ranqtixtaiion IIS.I63 ' 19.729 78.856 37.134 992 4.110 47.713

Coitfcrences Btd meaings . 10.976 •
7.537 225 -  •

3.471

Occupancy 524.S94 S8.0(H 456.078 125.8)4 28.057 1.020 78.801

Advcilisinc 13.742 25 8.610 1,117 218 399

Supplies 243.037 19.254 38322 57.531 9.422 192 47301

Equip, rcntali «id ctiainicttance i2>(l 57 13.689 18308 1.816 -
29.650

liuunnce 19.509 24,941 4.905 20.099 - - 6.966

Telephone IS.4S7 12.66! 27,046. 20.468 2.547 385 41.963

Postage 5.522 7 553 30314 568 58 3.189

Prmting and publicaiions 5.261 630 1.281
• •

Subscripcions - 446 456 • • •

^ograni luppotl •
38356

•
3S3I2 6.121

- •

Interest 12.995 - • •

Depreciation 64.<65 5.920 24.379 10.070 1.045
-

9.920

Aasiaitncc to dietus 7.SOO . 1.066,041 9.156331 • 114.335 547,988

Other expense 251.015 34.6*50 19.523 7,118 299.023

Miscellaneous 35.436 736 1323 1,813 21.805 7 2.024

In^'nd 2.248,292 • - • • • •

(CaiD) Loss on disposal of assets - . 125 • •

SUBTOTAL 10383.653 1,562,440 7.028480 13,442.609 436,073 263.240 2,535355

Over applied indirtcl CMli •  . . • • • • •

Eliminations 11.293,7U) (31,766> 144,196) 128328) . • (7360)

TOTAL EXPENSES S  1,589.865 S  1,530374 S  6.984,684 S 13,414,281 8  436,073 S  263.140 S  2327.495

Sc« indepctxleiii •udliof't rtpon md •ccatnpan>ing notes to ihe rinandai suiemenu.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SER VICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Cpotlnued)

FORTHEVEARCNDEDJULY3I.20I9

Propim Scnices

Suppon

Services

SNHS

Total Program

Management

Special Voluaieo Managonoii and

Proiecis Services ' Contoraiion Ser\ices General I'otal Expenses

EXPENSF.S

Paytol! $  7000 S  73.4(0 S  492,484 S 12.374.626 $  1.313.585 5 13.688411

Pi]rroll taxes 6.191 6.004 33,947 986,477 99.061 1,085438

Fringe benerits 11.699 II.S72 '  209.681 247iJ76 181.973 3.053449

Worten comp. tnsunnce 2.644 1(4 10,549 180.771 4,483 185454

Resircrneni bcncfMs 2.S34 2J69 33.859 751,739 110.189 861.928

Conniltani artd eontractual U79Ji2 478 I54J56 5.235,932 90J5i 5426.783

Tra%-d and trwspcrtaiion 4.649 6.554 ' 58.681 377.281 14.194 391.475

Conferences and meciings 3.727 220 16.307 42.463 1,675 44.138

Occupancy IS.040 .600.154 1.891,762 32.663 1.924,425

Advertisirtg 460 2.444 1.050 28,065 75 28.140

Supplies 3.624 6.599 17.685 442,867 40,709 483476

Equip, rentals and mainsettartcc 4.167 177 21.671 101,176 768 102.644

.  Insttrence 2.007 1.206 40,184 119,817 19.901 139.718

Telephone 2.2S3 1.453 19.545 2I3J8S 2.167 215.975

Postage 42 535 1.505 42.193 15.912 58.105

Mniing and publications . 175 •
7J54

•
7454

Subscriptions • 900 130 1.932 360 U92

Program support 4.077 - 43.787 127,553
-

127453

Interest • • 59.264 72,239 •
72,259

Ocprtciation 33>S •
347,894 499,438 ■  536 499,974

Assistance to clients. 1.492 . 88.251 10.981.438
-

10.982,438

Other expense 11.056 1.550 21.821 645,756 13.055 65S4U

Miscellaneous 237 8.850 120.753 192.984 1483 194467

hs-bnd . • 2,248J92 - 2448492

(Cain) Loss on disposal of assets ' , . 3.381 3.506 . 3406

SUBTOTAL 1.76a.3Z( ns.oso 2J96.939 40.442465 1.943.440 42486405

0«-er applied iadlrrei casu . . • - 95.023 95423

Eliaiinatlans
. . . (2.405,938) • (2,405,938)

TOTAL EXPENSES S  l.768J2( S  I1S.050 S  2J96,939 S 38,036.627 S  2.038.463 S 40.075.090

Sec itKtependeni auditor's repon and accomp&nytitg notes to the finincisl staiemetits.



SOJTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YF^R ENDED JULY 31. Ml« -

Proitnni Servieq

Economic Nutrition

Cbild Com01unity WorVTorce Language and Housing and

DevTleomeni Services Dcveloomcni Enentv Literacy- and Homeless Health

KNPF^-Ses

Pa>TOil i 4.957.M2 S  954.145 S 2.665.005 8 1.604,803 S  260.923 $  IOt.074 $  996,641

Payroll ta.<ic3 40SJ5I 75.089 211.297 i34ji5 22.698 1.701 82.041

Fringe benefits I.I6S.602 126.449 394.224 .  361,400 12,404 16.013 205.632

Woriten eocnp. insurance 103.257 ■ 9,387 6.542 16.946 65! 271 32.119

Rctiremcni beneflls 202.94S 84.961 173.276 83.274 6.498 6.622 56.860

Consultant and coniraetuaJ 40.049 26.382 1.534.030 I.575J84 6.614 459 22.816

Travel and iransportation II7J46 35.209 64.613 4U10 812 5.490 50.659

Coofeicnees and tneetia|S . 5.071 7.585 65 4.786

Occtvancy 509.137 57,628 738J28 135.204 24.229 1,020 76.845

'Advcnising 9.&03 8.489 1.442 25
•

150

Supplies 374.662 20.349 32.178 65.002 11.743 239 57.054

Eqiu'p. rentals sad mainlenance 21.461 12 39.839 19.776 934
•

23,648

insitranec 19.453 25J93 6.933 19.828 • • 6.565

Tdepbone 67.962 22.505 46.995 .  19.322 2J98 420 44J57

Postage 3.837 201 1.481 34J23 350 82 3,683

Priming artd publications 4,679 673 •
304 1.511 275 224

Subscriptions - 635 • •. • •

Pcogram support •
16,178

-

29.907 1.176
•

Interest 11.962 • • • •

Depreciation 54.064 5.920 7.900 13.280 1,144
•

1,468

Assisiance to clients 7.800 - 1.826.232 8.613.799 90,873 . 528.940

Other expense 246.533 10,013 32.666 18.899 - •
294.475

Miseellatteous 83.868 446 11.094 2.190 9.522 5.009

In-kiiid 2.269.028 • • - -

Loss on disposal of assets . - . • •

SUBTOTAL 10.738.861 1.476.710 7.801.122 12.805.693 370.697 238.541 2.493.979

Over applied Indirtei casts - - - •

CUminalloBS (2.314.524) (27.506) (44.196) (28.321) • • 17.860)

TOTAL ILVPENSES $ 1.424.337 i 1.449.210 S 7.756.926 $ 12.777J65 S  370.697 5  231.541 S 2.486.119

See independeni auditor's report and accompanpng notes lo the rmancial slatemcnis.

7



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. ANDAFFlLIAn-
COMIJINED STATEMENT OH HUNCTlONAL EXPENSES (Cowmucd)

■  FORT»EVEARENDia3jm.Y31.20U

ProKfafn SffNTcq

Suppon

Service*

SNHS MBiagoncai

Special VehiMccr Managemcni Total ProgTBn and Total

Protects Senieei Corootaiion Service* General Expenses

EXPENSES

Piyroli $  63J72 S  75363 $  422.932 812.108310 8 U58.069 813366379

PijToll taxes 5.433 6.159 42.979 996.970 96.197 1.093.167

Fringe beneHu 1,447 13.772 137.202 2.441.145 154.995 2.596.140

Workers eomp. intunnce 2.427 186 8,844 180,632 4.341 • 184.973

Retircmesi beneTii* 2J05 3.179 44.515 724338 113.858 838396

Coflsuhani and ccRiraetnal I.630.I0I 441 171365 5,007.648 70.685 5.078333

Travd and tiaRipotution 2.653 1.698 55.755 375347 10.124 385,671

Conrercaces and tnectings 3.706 •
26.557 47.770 770 48340

Oceupaacy 13.174 470.606 2.026.871 25.489 2.052360

Adveflistag 75 25 83 20.092 125 20317

Si^plies 3.11! 2357 9.617 576382 58.000 634382

Etptsp. rentals Bid nataienancc (23) 79 8.837 114.640 878 115318

InsuiBice 1.353 U26 34.976 115.727 13.745 129.472

Telephone 2354 U32 14.613 222.758 3.890 226.648

Postsge . 271 940 45.668 17.288 62.956

Printing and publicalions • 38
•

7.704 913 8317

Subacriptioni • I.OOO 551 2.186
-

2.186

Prognn s^vort 22.712 • 101335 178378 • 178378

Intereai • • 43343 55305 • 55305

Depreciation 25,062 - 3I7.69S 426333 536 427.069

Aasisance to dients 19369 • 26,984 11.114.499 • H.l 14.499

Other expense S67 2,767 3,836 610.056 6398 616.454

Misedlanraus Its 4.602 71.187 m.)06 I.6SI 119.757

In-ldnd . . - 2.269.028 • 2.269.028

Lw on disposal of asseis (4.170) . 2.429 (1.741) . (I.74I)

SUBTOTAL l,79735J 114,704 2.0)7381 39.155.052 1,837.952 41,693,004

Over Bppllrd ladirtct casts . . - (67.750) (67.750)

EllBlaatiea* . . . (2.422.414) . (2.422.414)

TOTAL EXPENSES S 1.797J54 S  114.704 5 2.017381 837.432.638 8 1.770.202 839 202 340

Sec iMJependeni tudilor's rcpon and aceompioyioi notes to the rtninciat Mtemcms.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  986,989 S  1.829,918

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 499,974 427,069

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets 3,506 (1,741)

Donation of iow-income housing projects -
(283,644)

Unrealized gain on investments (12.233) (441,314).

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Contracts receivable 677,107 (374.696)

Accounts receivable 14,609 (245,068)

Prepaid expenses (5,034) (11.575)

Under applied overhead 67,750 46.174

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable 199,288 (38,707)

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (56,907) (227,656)

Accrued compensated absences 13,852 19,686

Accrued other liabilities (10309) (231,349)

Refundable advances (2803SS) 171.410

Over applied overhead 27,739 •

Tenant security deposits 2,430 (3.501)

Total adjustments 1,141,417 (1.194.912)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,128,406 635,006

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of flxed assets (1.430,211) (511.155)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 16,500 4,170

Purchase of investments, reinvested dividends, and capital gains (307.794) ■ (269,044)

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,000,000 -

Deposit to restricted cash accounts (8,842) (191.550)

Cash received on acquisition of housing project - 256,536

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (730,347) (711,043)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on long>ierm debt (IIM63) (113,517)

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,286,696 (189.554)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,699,842 5,889,396

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR S  6,986,538 $  5,699,842

See independeni auditor's report and accompanying notes to the Financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2019 AND 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2019

Cash paid during the year for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities;
Acquisition oriow-income housing projects:
Other current assets

Property and equipment
Other liabilities

Notes payable

Equity acquired

Cash received on acquisition

$  72.259

2QI8

55,505

3.677

1,106,200

(164,006)
(918,763)

(283,644)

(256,536)

256,536

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY3I.20I9AND20I8

note I; ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire's Hillsborough
County and Rocklngham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of
education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing and homelessness
prevention. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
Individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of
poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental contracts. Services arc
provided through Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The Organization prepares Its combined financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which involves the application of
accrual accounting; and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities. The financial statement presentation follows the recommendation of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-
Profu Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Under
ASU 2016-14, net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions • Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions • Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization, pursuant to those stipulations or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions
to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization has no net assets with donor restrictions at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined
financial statements. The combined financial statements include the accounts of SNHS
Management Corporation because Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. controls more than 50%
of the voting power.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.

.1 1



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I.20I9 AND20I8

note I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cbnllnued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of (he combined statements of cash flows', the Organi2ation considers all
unrestricted Highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations
The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New
Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization
(FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In addition, on Octol^r 2, 2008, the Organization
entered into an agreement with its principal banking partner to coilaterallze deposits in .excess of (he
FDIC insurance limitation oh some accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered
by the FDIC and collateralization agreements. It is the opinion of management that there is no
significant risk with respect to these deposits at either July 31,2019 or 2018.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at. year-end. Receivables are recorded on the accrual b^is of accounting
primarily based on reimbursable contracts, grants and agreements. Balances outstanding aher
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad debt
expense and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable Is necessary at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Revenue Recognition
TTie Organization's revenue is recognized primarily from federal and state grants and contracts
generally structured as reimbursed contracts for services and therefore revenue is recognized based
on when their individual allowable budgeted expenditures occur. Refundable advances result from
unexpended balances from these exchange transactions. Federal and state grant revenue comprised
approximately 91% and 90% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Contributions and In-Kind Donations

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported, as an Increase in net assets without donor
restrictions, ifthe restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with' donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the combined statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. In-kind revenues and expenses represent fair
market value of volunteer services and non-paid goods which were donated to (he Organization
during the current fiscal year. All in-kind revenues in the fiscal year 2019 and 2018 were generated
through the Head Stan and Economic Workforce Development programs. Since the recognition
criteria is not met, no in-kind revenues are recognized as contributions in the combined financial
statements and the in-kind expenses have been eliminated.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY3I.2019 AND 2018

note I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conlinued)

Investments

The Organization carries invcstmcnis in marketable securities with readily detcrminable fair values
and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the combined statements of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying
combined statements of activities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired-by the Organization arc capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value if
donated. It is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these items in excess of
$5,000- Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Dcpreciaiion is calculated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for July, 31, 2019 and
2018 was $499,974 and $427,069, respectively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program
for which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various
funding sources have a reversionary interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The
disposition of fixed assets, as vyell as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source
regulations.

Advertising
The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The
production costs of advertising arc expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and
support services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support services are
allocated directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Other expenses, that are
common to several functions, are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting services are
those related to operating and managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-day basis.
Supporting services have been sub-classified as follows:

Management and Genera! - includes all activities related to the Organization's .internal
management.

Subsequent Events .
Management, has made an evaluation of subsequent events through February 12, 2020, which
represents the date on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure have been
considered in the preparation of these combined financial statements.

13



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TQ COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31,2019 AND 2018

note I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

^  Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Noi-for-Profil
Entities (Topic 958): Presentation ofFinancial Statements of Noi-for-Profit Entities. ASU 2016-14
requires significant changes to the financial reporting model of organizations who follow the not-
for-profit reporting model. The changes include reducing the classes of net assets from three to two
- net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The ASU will also
require changes in the way certain information is aggregated and reported by the Organization,
including required disclosures about liquidity and availability of resources.

The new standard is effective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2019 and thereafter and
must be applied on a retrospective basis. The Organization adopted the ASU effective August I,
2018. Adoption of the ASU did not result in any reclassificalions or restatemcnts of net assets or
changes in net assets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to clarify the principles for
recognizing revenue and to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The core principle of the guidance requires entities to recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The guidance is efTective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2020. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial statements.

Leases

in February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which provides users of
the financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations
of organizations that lease. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for
most existing capital leases as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases.
Both will be reported on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a
term exceeding 12 months. Lessors will sec changes as well, primarily made to align with the
revised model. The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ended July 30, 2022.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial
statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Conllnued)

JULY 3I,2019AND20I8

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as slipulaled in many of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to maintain separate accounts and make
monthly deposits into certain restricted reserves for the replacement of properly and other
expenditures. In addition, the Organization is required to maintain separate accounts.for tenant
security deposits and any surplus cash that may result from annual operations. These accounts are
also not available for operating purposes and generally need additional approval from oversite
agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds can occur.

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measurements, are described as follows:

Level I: inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has
the ability to access at the measurement date..

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset of liability, either directly or indirectly, such
as:

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

•  Inputs that arc derived princijsally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2
input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the last trading day of the
fiscal year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

15



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY31,20I9AND20I8

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organisation's assets at
fair value as of July 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019

(Mutual Funds

(Level D (Uvcl2) (Level 3) Total

Mutual Funds

2018

(Level n (Level 21 (Level 31 Total

S9.D85,663 S ; $ =

NOTE 4: INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments as of July 31:

2019 2018

Cost

Fair

Market Unrealized
Value Gains Cost .

Fair

Market Unrealized
Value Gains

Mutual Funds S 92.fi22 $2^224 $2^562 . $.JU52

The activities of the Organization's investment account arc summarized as follows:

Fair Value • Beginning of Year
Dividends and Capital Gains
Sale of Investrhems

Unrealized Gains

Fair Value • End of Year

2019

S9,085.663
307,794

(1,000,000)
12.233

M.4Q5.fi90

2018

$8,375,305
269,044

441.314
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Conlinucd)

jULY3L20l9AND20l8

NOTE 5;

NOTE <5:

AVAILABILITY AND LIOUIDITY

The Organization's financial assets available for expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position dale comprise
the following as of July 31,2019;

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Contracts Receivable
Accounts Receivable

Total financial assets available within one year

Total financial assets available within one year

S 6,986,538
8,405,690
3,488,413
82L565

SI 9.702.206

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly, all such
funds are available to meet the n^s of the Organization in the next 12 months. In addition, the
Organization maintains several reserve funds for property taxes, insurance expenses, and repair and
replacement or emergency needs which are required by financing authorities. These funds may be
withdrawn only with the approval of the finaitcing authority and are not considered by the Organization
to have donor restrictions.

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets that
provide sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other obligations as
they become due.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of July 31:
2019 2m

SNHS. Inc.

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon payment of
SI 1,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest is at 0.000%.
SNHS, Inc. is currently negotiating with the City of
Manchester to write off this debt.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of SI,833 plus interest through 2020. Interest is
at 4.984% and 4.000% at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Subtotal

11,275

238.669

S  249.944

$  1 1,275

S 271.944
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY3I,20I9 AND2018

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT(Cominued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

SNHS Manacement Corporation

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located on Pleasant St., Epplng, NH,
payable in monthly installments of $1,084 including interest
through 2042. Interest is at 3.500%.

Mortgage payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Note payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on. Vine St., Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be foi^iven only if real estate remains
low income housing for 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%,
forgiven annually.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only
if real estate remains low income housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to bank secured by real estate located on
Silver St., Manchester, NH, payable in monthly installments
of $2,619;including interest through 2019. Interest is at
3.750%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Allds St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $2,613 plus interest through 2021. Interest is
at 4.980% and 4.832% at July 31. 2019 and 2018.

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located in Deny, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $3,715 including interest through 2031.
Interest is at 5.500%.

2019

S 249.944

2018

$ 271.944

200,514

900,000

20,000

206,400

900,000

I

20,000

250,000

170,000

57,487

396.455

250,000

170,000

15,661

88,844

418.612

Subtotal $2.244.400 $2.341.461



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

-  JULY3I,20I9AND20I8

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfleld, NH, payable in
monthly installments of S3,327 including interest through
2033. Interest is at 7.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Less: Current Portion

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

20/9

S2J44.400

3S8.M4!

392,924

150.000:

3,145,438:
109.413

S  109,413

290,223

50,228-

53,206

56,366
2.586.002

S3.14S.438

20/8

$2.341.461

372.416

392,924

150.000

3,256,801
122.582

simm
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 7; OPERATING LEASES

I

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating leases. Total
lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2019 arvd 2018 equaled 5686,840 and $708,379,
respectively. The leases expire at various times through October 2020. Some of the leases contain
renewal options that are contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject
to renegotiation of lease terms.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the operating leases as of July
31,2019:

2020

2021

Total

$319,979

33.199
S3^3.168

NOTE 8: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to all of its
employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their wages, while the
Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The pension expense for the yeals ended July 31,
2019 and 2018 was $861,928 and $838,296, respectively.

NOTE 9: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and
local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to
change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to
comply with a change.

NOTE 10: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES .

The Organization receives contract funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes
specified by .the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds.
No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet
been determined.

Cotton Mill Souftre

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the Community
Development Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community Development Finance Authority
(CDFA) and was awarded $1,000,000 to provide funding for the development and adaptive reuse of
an abandoned historic cotton mill in downtown Nashua, NH. Under this program, the Project
(Cotton Mill Square) created 109 units of housing and was required to reserve 55 of these units for
low to moderate income households..
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY3I,2019AND2018

note 10: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES fConlinued)

Cotton Mill Square (Continued)

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA, SNHS
Management Corporation entered into a subrecipient agreement with the owners of the Project
(Cotton Mill Square LLC) to provide a promissory note and mortgage of the remaining award
amount of $800,000. The 20 year note to Cotton Mill Square LLC is non-intei^sl bearing and the
principal is forgivable at a rate of S% each year the Project maintains the required minimum of 55
low to moderate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on August 22, 20M and
remains in full compliance with the. required regulations as of July 31, 2019 and 2018. SNHS
Management Corporation feels that it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall into
noncompliance in future periods. Therefore, SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded
any contingent receivable or liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is
accelerated if the units fall out of compliance. ;

In October of 2017, the subrecipient agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was amended to
cease the annual 5% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively holds the promissory note
balance at $720,000 which will now be forgiven in full at the end of the agreement as long as the
Project maintains compliance with the original agreerhent's terms. This modification did not
change the contingent receivable or liability with SNHS Management Corporation.

J. Brown Homestead Property

On July I, 201 1, Rockingham Community Acton (RCA) was acquired by SNHS. As part of this
merger, SNHS assumed all the assets, liabilities and obligations of RCA which included the J.
Brown Homestead Property.

The J. Brown Homestead Property was conveyed to RCA in 1999 by the Town of Raymond for $ I
and a mortgage lien of $604,418. The property contains four apartments limited to low-income
seniors, office space for the Outreach operations, space for the Food Pantry operation, and a
common meeting room for use by Town of Raymond organizations. The Town of Raymond
included a requirement that the property be used for a social service center for a period of20 years,
called the benefit period, af\er which this requirement terminates.

In the event that SNHS sells or otherwise conveys the property within the benefit period, the
remaining lien will be either paid from the proceeds of the sale or remain with the land to any
subsequent purchaser for the remaining benefit period.

This mortgage lien has no scheduled principal or interest payments and is forgivable at a rate of 5%
each year of the benefit period until it is completely forgiven in year 2019. The value of this lien at
July3l,20l9and,20l8 is$30,22l and $60,442, respectively. SNHS has no plans to sell or transfer
this property. Therefore, the contingent mortgage lien liability has not been included in the financial
statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 1: ACOUISTIONS OF LOW-INCOME HOUSING PROJECTS

During 2017, SNHS Management Corporation acquired SNHS Deerfield Elderly Housing Limited
Partnership (Shcrbumc Woods), located in Deerfield, NH. SNHS Management Corporation
obtained the project operations and assumed all assets, liabilities, debt and equity for the project at
fair market value. The acquisition and allocation of the project was as follows:

Cash $ 256.536
Other Current Assets 3,677
Property and Equipment 1, 106,200
Current Liabilities (164,006)
Notes Payable (918,763)
Equity Acquired (Contribution) (283.644)
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[NDEPENDENTA UDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY fNFORMA TION

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southcm New Hampshire Services, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) and affiliate as of and for the years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018, and our report thereon dated
February 12, 2020, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those combined financial .statements, appears on
page I. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as
a whole.

The combining information in Schedules A and 8 (pages 24-25), the schedules of rcvertues and expenses • by
contract (pages 26-30), required by the State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives, and the
required schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines II, J.B. Milctle Manor, and Sherbume Woods
(pages 31-50), required by the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records,used to prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole. "

OueHetU ̂,^ssociiiUSt
Certified Public Accountants

Februaiy 12.2020
Lewiston, Maine

till Lisbon Street • Lcwi.slon. Maine 04240 • Telephone; (207) 786-0328 • FAX; (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpa.s.iict



Schedule A

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFEIUATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSmON

JULY 31.2019

SNHS

Management

SNHS. Inc. Corporation '  Sub-Total Elimination Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash S  138,227 $  6,848.311 $  6.986.538- s  - i 6.986.538

Investments 8,405,690 8,405.690 • 8,405.690

' Contracts receivable 3.485.878 2,535 3.488.413 ' 3,488.413

Accounts receivable 821.S6S 821.565 -
821.565

Prepaid expenses 49,279 45.918 95.197
-

95.197

Due from oiha corporations 3.576.334 (187.656) 3.388.678 (3.388.678) •

Total current assets 7.249.718 13.936.363 23,186.081 (3.388.678) 19.797.403

FIXEDASSETS

Land 266.860 2,431,008 2,697.868 2,697.868

Buildings and improvements 1.724.046 10.806,515 12.530.561 12.530^561

Vehicles and eRutpmeni 1.091.6)3 323.658 1.415.271 1.415.271

Total, fixed assets 3,082.519 13,561,181 16,643,700 16.643.700

Less - accumulated depreciation 1:371.135 3,866,003 5.237.138 5.237.138

Net fi-xed assets I.7II.384 9.695.178 n.406.562 11.406.562

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 27.603 383.977 411.580 . 4M.S80

TOTAL ASSETS i  8.988.705 S 26.015.518 S 35.004.223 S  (3.388.678) S 31.615.545

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CUKKKNT LIABILITIF^

Current portion of lottgHenn debt

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Over applied overhead

Tenant security deposits

Due to other corporations

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

33.275 i

S56.S54

160.191

134.613

90S.744

n,n9

26.941

76.138

101,122

885,614

359.819

93.090

119.999

57.290

109.413 S

657.676

I.04S.S05

359.819

227.703

1.028.743

27.739

K23I

109.413

657.676

1.045.805

359,819

227.703

1,028.743

27.739

84.231

4.125.421 2.804.386 6.929.807 (3.388.678) 3.541.129

216.669 2.819.356 3.036.025 3,036,025

4.342.090 5.623.742 9.965.832^ (3.388.678) 6.577.154

4,646.615 20.391.776 25.038.391 25.038.391

S  8.988.705 S 26.015.518 $ 35.004.223 S  (3.388.678) S 31.615,545
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Schedule B

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

SNHS

ManagcitKni

SNHS. inc. Corporal ion Sub-Total Elimination Total

REVIiA'UES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Cnuit/coninci revenue S  37,485.052 S $  37.485.052 S  (20.438) S •37.464.614

Prognm serviee fees 55.802 851.758 907.560 907,560

Local funding -
242,894 242,894 242,894

Rental ineome - 1.191,372 1.191.372 1,191.372

CIAs and contributions 192,066 16.662 208.728 208,728

Interest Income 169 314.385 314.554 314,554

Unrealized gain on investments • 12.233 12.233 12,233

In-kind 2.248.292 •
2.248.292 (2,248,292) •

Miscellaneous 561,114 296.218 857.332 . (137.208) 720,124

TOTAL REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 40.542.495 2.925.522 43.468.017 (2.405,938) 41,062.079

E.\PENSES

Program servtees:

Child Devdopmeni 10,883.653 10.883.653 (2,293.788) 8,589,865

Community Services 1,562.440 -
1.562.440 (31.766) 1.530.674

Eeoftomic and Workforce Dev. 7.028.810 - -  7,028,880 (44.196) 6,984.684

Energy 13.442.609. - 13.442,609 (28.328) 13.414.28!

Language and LHeracy 436.073
•

436.073 •
436.073

-Housingand Homeless 263.240
•

263,240 -
263,240

Nuiriiion.and Health 2.535,355 2.535J55 (7.860) 2.527.495

Special Projects 1.768,326 1.768,326
•

1,768,326

Volunteer Services 125,050 • 125,050 125.050

SNHS Management Corporation . 2.396.939 2,396,939 2J96.939

Total program services 38,045,626 2.396.939 40.442.565 (2.405.938) 38.036,627

Support services;

Managcnten and general 2.038.463 . 2.038.463 - 2.038.463

TOTAL EXPENSES 40.084.089 2.396.939 42.481.028 (2.405,938) 40,075.090

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS 458,406 528,583 986,989 -
986.989

NET ASSETS • BEGINNING OK \KAR 4.188.209 19.863.193 24.051.402 24.051.402

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  4.646.615 S 20,391.776 S 25.038.391 $ S 25.038.391
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

State of NH Governor's OfTlce of Strategic Initiatives

Headsuul Program

For the Period

August 1,20IS to July 3), 2019

Fund«305

REVENUES

Program funding

In-kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

S  5,039,103

1,814,481

6,836

6.860,420

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

WorJ(crs comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

In-kind

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

2,697,294

218,305

780.937

60,479

153,904

17,613

60,852

287,314

2,526

152,726

3,510

14,273

33,563

1,974

4,732

12,114

'  7,800

75,688

11,663

1,814,481

448,672

6,860,420
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

State of NH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

Octoberl.20l8ioJuly3l.20I9

Fund tf 630-18

REVENUES

Program funding

Other revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

9.747.059

32.647

2,351

9.782.057

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Conference and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenarKe

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Program support

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

373,879

30.932

124,779

1,142

20.174

19,965

6,194

333

44.865

213

20.929

2,026

982

8,025

17.592

228

28,048

5,158,

9,010,973

344

830

64,446

9.782,057
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FORTHEyEARENDEDJULY3l.2019

Siaic of NH Governor's Office of Slratcgic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August i. 2018 to September 30. 2018

Fund #630-17

REVENUES

Program funding S 160.224

Total revenue 160,224

CXPENSeS

Payroll 77,917

Payroll taxes 6,149

Fringe benefits 21,229

Workers conip. insurance 241

Retirement bencfils 3,615

Consultant and contractual 5.940

Travel and transportation 1,465

Occupancy 10,321

Supplies 4,820

Equip, rentals and maintenance 651

Insurance 711"

Telephone 1,467

Postage 786

Program support 6,779

Assistance to clients 3,254

Other expense 1,495

Miscellaneous 257

Admlnisiraiivc costs . 13,127

Total expenses 160,224

Excess of expenses over revenue _$_ -
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

State ofNH Governor's OITlce of Strategic Initiatives

Early Headstart Program

For the Period

August I, 2018 10 July 31, 2019

Fund U 300

REVENUES

Program funding $ 1.370.247

In-kind 342.470

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue 3,013

Total revenue 1,715.730

EXPENSES

Payroll 716,548

Payroll taxes 57.878

Fringe benefits 168,507

Workers comp. insurance 15,925
Retirement benefits 29,603

Consuliant and contractual 3,392

Travel and transportation 7,089

Occupancy 112,627
Advertising 876

Supplies 42,1 13
Equip, rentals and maintenance 1,106

Insurance 2,465

•Telephone 22,665

Postage 25

Printing and publications 236

Interest ' 12,995

Depreciation 25,036
Other expense 30,647

Miscellaneous 2,770

In-kind 342,470

Administrative costs 120,427

Total expenses 1,715,730

Excess of expenses over revenue
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2019

Eleclric Energy Assistance

For ihe Period

August 1, 2018 to July 31. 2019

Fund ff 665

REVENUES

Other revenue $ 716,563

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue 37,230
Total revenue 753,793

EXPENSES

Payroll 399,246
Payroll taxes 32,852
Fringe benefits 102,830
Workers comp. insurance 1,315
Retirement benefits 17,554

Consultant and contractual 24,257

Travel and transportation 4,788
Conference and meetings 333
Occupancy 54,763
Advertising' '38

.  Supplies 23,231
Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,677
Insurance '-606

Telephone 9,558
Postage 11,355
Subscriptions 228
Depreciation 600
Other expense 344
Miscellaneous ^*66

Administrative costs 65,652
Total expenses 753,793

Excess of expenses over revenue S
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Tenant Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement ResetVe
Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

TOTAL ASSETS

LIAB/LIT/ESAJ^D NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion ofMortgage Loan Payable /

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 20/8

s 18,732 28,635

- 509

6,035 6,035

24,767 35,179

13,294 12,708

30,028 36,414

78,399 76,953

23,456 7,270

4,858 4,758

136,741 125,395

166,600 ■  166,600

580,758 569,400

747,358 736,000.

43,447 28,068

703,911 707,932

s 878,713 S 881,214

s 6,096 5 5,886

1,734 2,729

944 62

8,774 8,677

13,294 12,708

32,103 15,947

194,418 200,514

226,521 216,461

248,589 237,846

630,124 643,368

s 878,713 S 881,214
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJ EOT No. A199991 -046)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2019 AND 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Other Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

interest Income • Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Total Expenses

2019

172,681

2,235

1,470

15

2,490

178,891

50,777

43,570

41,670

15,380

7,130

33,608

2018

172,715

~ 2.215

7,555

30

1,296

183,81

21,821

33,879

63,734

14,316

7,332

33,966

192,135 175,048

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

(13,244)

643368

630,124

8,763

634,605

643,368
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WHISPERING PINES II

{FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

EXPENSES; 2019 2018

Admlnisiraiivc

Advertising S S  8

Management Fees 14,400 14,400

Salaries and Wages 20,002 2,209

Fringe Benefits 3,415 126

Investment Fee 6,120 -

Legal Expenses • 69

Telephone 3,128. 2,973

Other Administrative Expense 3,712 2,036

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 50,777 21,821

Utilities

Electricity 19,750 18,406

Fuel 13,124 7,655

Water and Sewer 10,214 7,818

Other Utility Expense 482 -

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 43,570 33,879

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies 692 320

Trash Removal 2,160 1,260

Snow Removal 10,296 16,710

Grounds/Landscaping - 1,150

Elevator Repairs and Contract 2,764 2,920

Repairs (Materials) 25,758 17,374

Operation (Contract) - 24,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 41,670 63,734

Depreciation 15,380 14,316

Interest - NHHFA Mortpaee Note 7,130 7,332

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 24,293^ 28,877

Payroll Taxes 1,612 203

Retirement Benefits 1,871 •

Workman's Compensation 1,064 118

Insurance 4,768 4,768

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 33,608 33,966

TOTAL EXPENSES $  192,135 $  175.048
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPHNC SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. AI9999I-046)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rfnal Qpcmions

Income

Tcmnl Paid Rent

HAP Rcni Subsidy

Totnl Rental Income

Service Income

tmeresi Income

Commercial Income

Oiher Income

TotM Rental Oncraiions RcceiBls

Fxnenscs

Administrstivc

Utilities

Mairtterence

Interest • NHHFA Monga^e Note
Interest-Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rrntiil Oneratioru Disburscmcnli

Cash Provided bv Rental Ooeralions

Amortintion ofMoneage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Aflet Debt Service

S  153.454
I9.7?6

2.23S

1^

1.470

• 49.895

4).570

42.665

7.130

33.60S

S.SI6

S  173.190

176.910

(176.868)

42

(5.844)

OTHER RECF.IPTS

Due IP ManwcmcntAgcm

Qutner Advances

Tratrsfcr from Rrstricled Cash Resctves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

rnmsfers lo Rcstriaed Cash Reserves

and Eschwvs

Ptifchasc of Fixed Assets

Renttvinem of Owner Advances

OihcT Pannershio Expenses

Tmnsfrfs to Tenant Sceurilv Denosrt Account

16,156

46.320

55.176

IU59

62.476

66,535

Net Increase or (Decreasel in Proi^t Account Cash

Pmirei Aecoont Cash Balance at Becinnina of Year

Proifct Account Cash Bnlartce at End of Year

Composition of Proicci Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

(9.903)

28.635

18.732

18.732

PfllY Citfti

Unrestricted Reserve (if aooticeblel

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

Touil Petty Cash and Unrcsiricied Reserves

Total Project Account Ca.sh

at End of Year S  18,732
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNO.AI9W9I-CM6) •

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2018

SOURCIi: OF FUNDS

Renml Qocraiions

Income

Tcnsnl Psid Rent

HAP Rcni Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest litcome

Commvcial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Oocniiions Rcceints

Expcfgcs

AdtninistrBiive

Utilities

Mattwenonce

lotercsi • NHHFA Mongage Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Oneraimns Disbursements

Cash Providci< bv Rental Qoerpiions

AmonlMiion of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Aflcr Debt Service

i  153.261

18.975

2.2IS

30

7.555

20.657

33.879

71.119

2^

33.966

5.684

S  172,236

182.036

(166.953)

15,083

9.399

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due IP Management Attcffl

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricied Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows .

Purchase ofF^^^erf *c«ei<

Renmrment of 0%vner Advances

Other Parsnershio Expenses

Transfer! ttt Tenant Security Deposit Account

<26.475)

46.158

38,810

19J00

19.683

58,110

Net Increase Of fPccrcasel in Proicci Account Cash

Pmieci Account Cash Balance at BeaitminB of Year

Pfoiect Account Cash nabnccai End of Year

Comoesition of Proieei Account Cash

(29.028)

57.663

28.635

28.635

Pcitv Cash

Unrestricled Reserve (ifappliCTblcI

DcconHing Reserve

Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

Total Peitv Cash and Unrcsiricicd Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

iH End of Year 28.635
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WHISPERING PINES (I

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Descriolion of Fund Deposits

Transfers

Balance From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations
Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  4.758 $ 4,800 $

7,270 40.176

36,414

76,953

10,200

67 $ 4,767 $ 4,858

302 24,292 23,456

675 17,261 30.028,

1,446 - 78,399

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows S 125,395 $ 55,176 $ 2,490 $ 46,320 $ 136,741

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY3I,20I9

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCTNHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (13.244)

15,380

5,886

10,200

17,261

S  3,311
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2001 $ 243,855 £ £ . 243,855

12/31/2002 S 243,855 S . • £ 487.710

12/31/2003 s 243,855 S 5,895 S 725.670

12/31/2004 s 243,855 £ 7,200 £ 962,325

12/31/2005 $ 243,855 £ £ 1,206,180

12/31/2006 s 243,855 £ 6,120 £ 1,443,915

12/31/2007 s 243,855 £ ■  £ 1,687,770

12/31/2008 s 243,855 £ £ 1,931,625

12/31/2009 % 243,855 £ _ £ 2,175,480

12/31/2010 % 243,855 £ £ 2,419,335

12/31/2011 s 243,855 £■ £ 2,663,190

12/31/2012 s 243,855 S £ 2;907.045

12/31/2013 s 243,855 £ 7,200 £ 3,143,700

12/31/2014 s 243,855 £ £ 3.387.555

12/31/2015 s 243.855 £ £ 3,631,410

7/31/2016 £ 142,249 £ ,  £ 3,773,659

7^1/2017 ■ $ . 243,855 S £ 4,017,514

7/3I/20I8 s 243,855 £ £ 4,261,369

7/31/2019 $ 243,855 £ - £ 4,505.224
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR ^

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULV3I,20I9AND20I8

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST. FUNDED
Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve
Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements •

Total Rental Property
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019

154,554

96,431

6,543

221,486

2018

s 17,001 S 37,774

6,880 8,618

23.88! 46,392

15,764 15,755

138,851

96,364

6,538

257,528 241,753

176,000 176,000

1,071,375 1,071,375

M47,375 1,247,375

89,879 62,422

1,157,496 -  1,184,953

S  1,454,669 $  1,488,853

S  1,355 S  3,545

430 282

1,785 3,827

15,781 15,772

45,617 .  40,657.

1,170,000 1,170,000

1,215,617 l.2'l 0,657

1,233,183 1,230,256

258,597

S  1,454,669 1 ,488,853
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

General Expenses

Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

2019

208^37

1,274

15

175

209,701

71,428

59,196

59,672

27,458

29,058

246,812

(37,111)

258,597

2018

207,802

1.228

33

142

209.205

80,209

61,477

34.774

27,009

49,818

253,287

(44,082)

302,679

$  221,486 , $ 258.597
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

EXPENSES; 2019 2018

A(^n^ini?trplivc

Advertising $  350 S  50

Management Fees 17,688 17,818

Salaries and Wages 31,953 42,606

Fringe Benefits 10,362 12,930

Audit and Accounting Expense 400 800

Legal Expenses 253 !,I73

Telephone 1,431 1,601

.Other Administrative Expense 8,991 3,231

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 71,428 80,209

Utilities

Electricity 33,814 39,427

Fuel 15,853 13,413

Water and Sewer 8,733 7,728

Other Utility Expense 796 909

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 59,196 61,477

Maintenance

Cuistodial Supplies 1,726 1,605

Trash Removal 3,615 2,160

Snow Removal 4,242 3,450

Grounds/Landscaping 3,100 2,204

.Elevator Repairs and Contract 4,835 5,912

Repairs (Materials) 42,154 19,443

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 59,672 34,774

Pepreciatipn 27,458 27,009

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 17,040 34,599

Payroll Taxes 2,613 3,651

Workman's Compensation 1,102 1,866

Retirement Benefits - 1,283

Insurance 8,303 .8,419

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 29,058 49,818

TOTAL EXPENSES S  246,812 $  253,287
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J.B. MILCTTC MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILinTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rcnifll Qpcmltons

Income

Tcionl Paid Reni

HAP Reni Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Inieresi Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Ooefntiom Recemtl

Exoctwa

Administrative -

Utilities

Maintenanee

Intcrcsi - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Inieresi • Other Notes

General

Olha

Totnl Rental Ortcrations Disfaurscmcnts

Cash Provided hv Rental Qnenitions

Amort itation of Mortgage

Ciwh Provided b\' Renul Ottenttions

Afler Debt ScTvice

S  177,824

30.413

1.274

IS

69,543

59.196

6I.S62

29.058

S  208.237

209.526

(219.659)

(10.133)

OTHER REClilPTS

Due to Maoaflctncnt Agent

Qwter Advnnces

Tmmfcf from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

ReBavmcnt of Owner Advances

Other Pnrtnershm Exoenscs

Tntnsfen to Tenant Security Deposit Account

4.960

15.600

4.960

15.600

Project Accoiwt Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Protect Accoum Cash Balance at End of Year

Comoosition of Protect Accourit Cash

Balance in End of Year

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Restirve (if floolicabic)

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Otha Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unresirtcted Reserves

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year

(20.773)

37.774

17.001

17,001

S  17.001
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J.8. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY; J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDUU; OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

SOUKCF. OK FUNDS

Renlnl OoCTBlions

Income

Terttnl Paid Kcn«

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rentfll Income

Service Income

Interest Irtcomc

Commercial Income

Other Irtcome

Total Renlnl Qpcmlions Receipts

Expenses

Administniliw

Utilities .

Maintenance

Interest • NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Total Renlnl Oocraiiont Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Orxmlions

AmoniMtion ofMongiwe

Cash Provided bv Rental Qpemtions

After Debt Service

GTIiER RECEIPTS

Due to Manftflcment Agent

Ou-ner Advances

Trtwwfcr from Rcsiricied Cash Rescrx-cs

and Escrows

OTI! ER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

TnwKfcrt to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Renavment of Qy,TKr Advances

Other pBflncTshio Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

S  177.836

29.066

1.228

33

81,918

61 .<77

34.907

49.818

(22.427)

15.599

8,975

$  207.802

209.063

(228.120)

.iiiOJZi

(22.427)

(21)

24.553

Net Increase or f Decreased in Project Aecounl Cnsh

Project AccQuni Cash Balance at t3eainmnfl of Year

Project Account Cosh [3»lance at End of Year

Composition of Project Accouni Cash

BnlnnceetEndofYear

Pg'tv Cash

Unrestricted Reserve fifapolicablcl

Decorating Rcserx'c

Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

(66.037)

103.811

37.774

37.774

Total Pciiv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Accouni Cash

m End of Year 37.774
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations
Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  6,538 $

138,851

96,364

15,600

5  $

103

67

$  6,543

154,554

96,431

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $ 241,753 $ 15,600 S 175 $  257,528

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31, 2019

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

S  (37.111)

. 27,458

, 5,600

$  (25,253)
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PSA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 3I,20I9AND20I8

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations S 91,630 S 56,958

Prepaid Expenses 6318 6,623

Total Current Assets 97,948 63,581

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 15,855 16.600

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve 124,871 1 11,486

Operating Reserve 67,111 65,873

Tax Escrow 11,877 9,311

Insurance Escrow 3,581 3,802

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 207,440 190,472

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land 211,000 21.1,000

Building and Building Improvements 907300 895,200

Total Rental Property 1,118300 ■ 1,106,200

Less Accumulated Depreciation 28,775 5,595

Net Rental Property 1,089,425 1,100,605

TOTAL ASSETS S 1,410,668 S 1,371,258

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
..

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable s 15344 $ 14,309

Accounts Payable 4,240 2,410

Accrued Expenses 194 1 17

Total Current Liabilities 19,778 16,836

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 15305 16,600

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Afniiate 131,432 136,698

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion 885,694 901,031

Total Long-Tcrm Liabilities 1,017,126 1,037,729

Total Liabilities 1,052,709 1 ,071,165

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 357,959 300,093

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 1,410,668 s 1.371,258 .
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SHER.BURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019 AND THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31. 2018

2019 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income S  260,808 S  66,083

Laundry Income 2,640 670

Donation - 283,644

Other Income 1,070 582

Interest Income - Unrestricted 56 9

Interest Income - Restricted 3,633 67?

Total Income 268,207 351,665

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 38,625 11,228

Utilities 35,850 6,553

Maintenance 55,722 12,698

Depreciation 23,180 5,595

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note 25,616 6,557

General Expenses 31,348 8,941

Total Expenses 210,341 51,572

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS 57,866 300,093

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 300,093 ■ -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  357,959 $  300,093
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FORTHE YEAR ENDEDJULY 31. 2019 AND THETHREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31. 2018

EXPENSES; 2019 2018

Administrative

Advertising S  125 S

Management Fees 20,872 4,500

Salaries and Wages , 8,526 3,417

Fringe Benefits 3,021 1,036

Audit and Accounting Expense 75 925

Telephone 2,291 572

Other Administrative Expense 3,715 778

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 38,625 11,228

Utilities

Electricity 20,577 4,442

Fuel 8,898 1,334

Water and Sewer 4,597 200

Other Utility Expense 1,778 577

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 35,850 6.553

hiaintenancc •

Trash Removal 1,523 525

Snow Removal 25,123 -

Grounds/Landscaping 292 431

Repairs (Materials) 28,784 11,742

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 55,722 12.698

Depreciation 23,180 5,595

Interest - NHHFA MprtgapcNote 25,616 6,557

Cener?l Expenses
Real Estate Taxes 25,184 6,938

Payroll Taxes 714 287

Workman's Compensation 454 182

Retirement benefits 228 342

Insurance 4,768 1,192

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 3U48 8.941

TOTAL EXPENSES S  210.341 $  51,572
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SHi^RUURNI: WOODS

(l-ORWERLY: SNHS DGERh-ll-LO B.DERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

SOURCE OK FUNDS

Rental Qocriiiom ,

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Imcresi Income

' Comtnercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Onefniiom Receipts

pKoerwes

Administraiive

Ulililtes

Maintenance

Intcrca • NHKFA Mongage Note

interest - Other Notes

Genera)

Other

Total Rental Qncraiiortt DisburtcmenU

Ctnh Provided bv Rental Operations

Amort mition of Mortgaee

Cash Piwidcd bv Rental Qttenttiom

After Debt Service

S  119.235

141.573

2.640

56

1,070

3>,243

35.850

53.892

25.616

31,348

14.302

S 260.808

264 374

(184.949)

79.625

65.323

OTHER RECEIPTS

One to Manaecrrtcnt Agent

Oivner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers iQ Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

PufcKase of Fixed Assets

Renavmem nff>wnef Advances

Other Panncrshio Expenses

Tmnsfcrs to Tenant Sectiriiv Denosit Aceount

43,443

56.778

12.000

5.266

SO

43.443

74.094

Net Incrcnsc in Project Accotmt Cash

Prnieet Accotrnt Cash Balance at Betrinninc of Year

Pioieet Account Cash Balance at End of Year

romnositinn of Project Account Cash

Ralance at End of Year

34.672

56.958

91.630

91.630

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Reservcfifapplicnblc)

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Petts- Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

at End of Year t  91.630
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SlIERBURHEWOODS

{FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFtELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PDA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31. 20H

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RcwpI Qnemiioftt

Incomg

Tensnl Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Tom! Rental income

Service income

inicfcst Income

Commcrcisi income

Other Income

Total Benin! OncTWiom ReecipU

Expenses

Admtnistmive

Ulilities

Maintenance

Iweres • NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Qncraiiortt Disbufscmcnts

rath Provided hv Rmtal Ot^ftwions

AmonhMtion ofMotlgaee

Cash Provided hv Rental OpenMions

AflcT Debt Service

3i.3J8

34.745

670

582

14,673

6,553

13,836

6,557

8.941

3.423

S  66.083

67.344

(50.560)

16.784

13.361

OTHER RECEIPTS

Thr m Management Aeenl

Ow-ncf Advnncea

Tramfer from Restricted Cmh Reserves

and Escrosvs

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Tmmrers in Restricted Cash Reaervcs

and Escrotvs

Pnrchate orFixcd Assets

Rcnnymcffl of Qvhtci
Other Pitftnershio Expenses

Tmmfcrs to Tenant Setnmtv Dcawit Account

iL2ia

13.910

12.881

6.864

12.881

Net JtKrtase ffT f Account Cash
Ptoieci Account Cash Oftlance at Rceinmna of Year

Proicei Account Cath Balance at End of Yefif

Composiiion of Project AecountCnsh

Balance at End of Year

7.344

49.614

56.958

56.958

Petty Cash

Unrestricted RpMrve(ifapntic«biel

i3ccoratt'ng Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrcxirktcd Reterves

Total Proicci Account Cash

at Fnd of Year 5  56.958
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PSA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

Descrinlion of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations Interest
Period Account Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow S 3,802 $ 4,500 $ 46 S 4,767 $  3,581

Tax Escrow 9,311 29,028 214 26,676 11,877

Replacement Reserve 111,486 23,250 2,135 12,000 124.871

Operating Reserve 65,873 - 1,238 - 67,111

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows % 190,472 $ 56,778 $ 3,633 $ 43.443 S  207.440

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY31,2019

NET INCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCTNHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  57,866

23,180

14,302

23,250

12,000

$  55,494
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PSA 901-02-05)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS" FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

YEAR

MATCIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003 S 1 13,850 $ $ 1 13,850

12/31/2004 s 113,850 , s s 227,700

12/31/2005 s 113,850 S s 341,550

12/31/2006 s 113.850 $ s 455,400

12/31/2007 s 113,850 $  . - s 569,250

12/31/2008 s '  113,850 $ s 683,100

\m\n.m s 113,850 $ s 796,950

12/31/2010 s 1 13,850 s  . - s 910,800

12/31/201 1 $ 113,850 s $ 1,024,650

12/31/2012
i

s 1 13,850 s s 1,138,500

12/31/2013 s 1 13,850 J  - s 1,252,350

12/31/2014 $ 1 13,850 s $ 1,366,200

12/31/2015 s 1 13,850 s  - s 1,480,050

12/30/2016 s 1 13,850 s $ 1,593,900

12/30/2017 s 1 13,850

I

s $ 1,707,750

7/31/2018 s 66.413 $ s 1,774,163

7/31/2019 s 1 13,850 s s 1,888,013
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
PQ Box 5040. Manchester. NH 03108 - (603)668-6010

The Community ̂ct)on f^nerehip for HiOsborough end.Roddnghem Counties

B.O/^p. OF DIRECTORS * as of January 2020

Public Sector - * ■i Prlvete^SectGr vLbw^lhc6tTie .$e.ctot " V  -;H3. Pojicy"Cb.uncifi::
ReofHentina Manchester Reoresentlna Manchester ReDresehtino Manchester
Lou D.'Altesandro Vice.ChaIr Peter Ramsey James Brovm Ai.ld.a yVebber

Term: 4/1$^9/21 0/18-0/21 Term begins 11/19
Toni Pappas

Carrie Marshall Gross Orville Kerr, Secretary
Term:.9/17-0/20 Term 9/18-9/21

Anna Hamet
Representina Nashua Reoresentina Nashua Term Expires Sept. 2022
Kevin Mdrtarty Treasurer Dolores Bellavance, Chairmen

Term: 0/18-9/21 Representina Nashua
Bonnie Henault

Temv 0/17-0/20

Shirley Peiletler
Reoresentind Towns Reoresentlnq Towns • Term: 0/17-0/20
Thomas Mullirts German J. Ortiz

Representina Towns;

Reoresentino Rockinaham Countv ReDresehtlno Rockinaham Countv
Rep. Sherman Packard

Representina Rockinaham Countv
'



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC.

The Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough and Rocklngham Counties
Mailing Address: PO Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108.

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone: (603)668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

PY20 WAP

MpyilO. 2P20

List of Key Administrative Personnel

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage Amount

Executive Director Donnalee Lozeau $190,645 O.OOK 0

Deputy Director Ryan Clouthier $112,348 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer James Chalssof) $125,962 0.00% 0



OONNALEE LOZEAU

Commuhlty/CMc
invoty9ment- Current

•  Eagle Scout Board of
Review

•  SL Joseph Hospital Board of
Directors

•  NH Tomorrow Leadership .
Council

•  Statewldo Worldoroe
Innovation Board

•  American Council of
Young Political Loaders.
Alumni Member

•  Mary's House Advisory
Board

•  The Phis Company

•  NH Community Arkion
Assoc.

•  SL Mary's Bank Supervisory
Comrriittoe

Communlty/Civlc
Involvement- Past

Roacfting Higher NH
NH Center for PubOc Policies
Studies

Gdyemor'a Judicial SelecSoo
Commission

Governor's Transportation
Commntee

lylayor's Task Force on
Youth. Co-Chelf
Big Brothers Big Sisters
Board erf Directors; Past
President: current Big Sister
Manchester Conrununtty -
Resource Center, BOD

Greater Nashua Der^
ConrrectJon BOD. Foundlrrg
Member

Health Goto Furrd

Community Grarit Program
Advisory Courrcll
Nashua.Youth Council BOO

Greal'Amertcan Oowntovm

Sruvicalink BOO

NH Energy and Climate
CoDatwrsU^
Health Caro Oistrtct
CoundiV

Tesk Force, for (he Renewal
of Judicial Conduct
Procedures

Domestic Violence
Coprdlhallng Council Nashua
Disdplina Re^ew Committee
Nashua School Otstilct

Nashua Community College
Advisory Board
Nashua Airport
Authority. Commissioner
US'Conforpnce of Mayors
Na^ua-Legtsiative
Deiegstion, Chair
and Vice Chair

No Labels

Fbc the Debt

Experience

Southern Now Hampshire Services, Inc.
(January 2016-Pre8ent)

Executive DIrector/CEO

Manchester, NH

-C^'^^lc^'^et^'i\Tn'bt^"rsigh2^f{S$n7huniiy^

City of Naahua, New Hampshire
(2008^2016) • Elected Nashua, NH

Mayor
•  Overall day to day managem.ent of dty oparatiohs

■  Annual budget developm ent and oversighl
•  Chair of Board of Public Works

•  Chair of Rnance Committee

Southern Now Hampshire Services, Inc.
(1993 - 2008) Manchester. NH

Director of Program and Community Development

•  Assessed the need for 'services throughout Hiilsborough County through
community outreach

•  Developed partnerships, collaborations and new initiatives with service
providers artd business

•  Negotiated purchases and contiBcts end presented projects before local
boards, commissions and departments-relative to housing, support services
end economic development

•  Designed and implemented strategies for developing working relationships
with town end city ofOdats, local sen/ice providers and eppropriate privale-
sector officials in order to project a positive image of.Southem New
Hampshire Services, Inc.

•  Developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

•  Founded Mary's Hous.e 40 units of housing for homeless women

•  Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy Programs

•  Expanded Head Start Services

•  Secui^ property and developed sites for two outreach office locations and
four housing developments

•  Developed the program end secured the site for Economic Opportunity
Center

City Streets Restaurant, (1986*1991}
City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003)

Co«Owncr/Operator

Nashua, NH
Nashua, NH

Operated 450 seat restaurant end banquet facility and effectiveiy managed
ilnandai accounts

Responsible for oversight of the'day to day operations and restaurant
management to iiKlude hiring and Hring of employes, employee
performance evaluations and scheduting of staff

Manage Accounts Payable end Accounts Receivable, purchastng. auditing,
deposit and check processing functions for the restaurant

Responsible for compliance with local, state and federal requirements as
related to; licenses, taxes, fees and staff



Past Cqmniunlty/CMc
Invotvcmont Contlnuod

• Amaricen Legion GrsnKoGtrts
istate (student ad^or

•  NH Center for RibBc Pottoy
Studies

• Neshua.Senior High School
Senate- .Comnnintty Advisor

• Eut Holib StriMt Master
P1an<Stoef1ng Committee

« New Hampshire Crtmlnai
Justice Resource-Center.

OlrectDT

• GreaterNashuaChemberof
Commerce, Director

• Grdeter Nashua yVoddprce
Housing Coalition. Fo^mdlng
Member

• Redoing Ftdures, local
asset buOding development
ooQaborati^. fburxling
member

• Mayor's TesK Force on
Housing. Chair

• GreaterNashua Asset
Buikling Coalition, Pounding
Member

• Greater Nashua Healthy
CornmunltyCoDaborallvo.
Member

' • New Futures. Adolescent
Treatment Collaborative.

Member

• NH Woddorce Housing
CoundL Mismber

• Continuum Care for the

Horne.ieu'. .Memt>er

• tJnlted Way Conununlty Needs
Assessment Comrhittoe.
Member

• New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation St^e Board.
Member

EflECTEbiQ'FFICEl •

NH State Roprosentatlvo, Hillsborough County, District 30
(1984-2000)

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Roprosorttativas
(1095-2000)

•  Addressed constituent concerns

•  Assisted Non-Pr^nt organizations and local businesses with
governmental concerns and steering tegistation through the political
process by working with members end leadership In the NH House of
Representatives and the NH Senate.er^ representatives of the
Executive end Judicial branches

•  Managed floordebates'and supervised House Ca/andar content;
•  Presided over House sessions and coordinated Committees of

Conference

•  House Staff end Security oversight
•  Responsible for-functions:of the House on behalf of or In the absence of

the Speaker

Commlttoe Assignmerrts:'
"  House Rules Committee. Vice Chainmen

•  House Legislative Admlnistretion Committee.
•  Joint Facilities Committee
•  Chair. New member Orientation
■  House Corrections end Criminal Justice Committee, Vice

Chairman

•  House Judldaiy Committee
"  Criminal Justlce'Sub-Commlttee, Chairman
•  Member State arid Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:
■  Joint Legislative.Perfdrmenca Audit and^Overslght Committee
•  Juvanile.Justice Commission, Chairman

■  Supreme Court Guardian Ad Lltem Committee
■  Superior Court Alternative Dispute-Resolution Cornmlttee
■ Work Force Opportunity'Council
•  Ihterb'ranch Crirhlhal end Ju^nile Justice'Council. member

■  Chairman Subcommittee on Offen'derB.
•  Space and Prison Prograrnming
■  Co-Chair juveniles subcommittee

•  National Conference of State Legislatures l.ew and Justice Vice
Chair

•  Council of State Governments ihtefgdvefrimeht^ Affaire,
Co.irectlons arid Public .Safety

EDUCATro'Nf&MTRaiNTNGr^

CC^P, Certified Comrnunlty.Action Professional

Rivler Cotlege. f^ashua, IHH- Undergraduate woric In Political Science

Restaurent Management Institute

Mediation end Altemalive Dispute Resolution Treirting

Leadership Institute. Asperi

Computer SkDls. Microsoft Office Applications

Justice of the Peace



RYAN 
Q̂

CLOUTHIER

OBJECTIVE

Seddng a lesderihtp role which will allow me the oppominity to utilize end build upon my knowledge tnd
passion for the work perfonned by Community Actioo Agracies in the state of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being (he support and strength for the Communities we serve.

EXPERIENCE

Deputy Director j Southern New Uampsblre Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESENT

Serving es part of the Executive Management Team tnd is responsible for providing insplring leadership to the
Soothem New Herhpshire Services (SNHS) senior management te^ and d^l^ing a performance culture l6'
ensure the efTeaive managanent of a comprehensive arrayof over sixtyprograml The Deputy Director will tic
the various componcnt;progrems including: nutrition; housing; energy; workforce development; income
eohanca^t; edi^tioh; ̂  eldqiy services to the igtmcy, to each other, ̂  to the general community, by
promoting ̂  communicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with (he bcecutive Director
aod.Ftscal Officer the Deputy Director provides (he stewardship of SNHS by .being activdy involved with the.
e^mcy's high-performthce senior leadership (cam ib (he devdc^ntHmt, iinplcmctitatipti, and.management of (he
program content es well as annual budgets. Resporoible for erxsuring that services and programs provided fulfill
the agency's mission, and arc.in compliance with ail rcderal, state, funding, and city reg^ilaiions, cenificBtiona,
and licensmg requt^cpts;

Enet^ and Housing Opeiiidons Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018
Rc^nsiblc.for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs, Information tcdmology. Housing and
Maintenance.prograips'with mission, vision and'lcsda^ip. Responsible for the planning, impleroeniation, and
evaluation ofall f^ets of fiscal end program managemenC.cfTeciiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's odministraiion and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing. Also rtspoosible for ihaintaining a working relationship wi^.goyemtneitti] officials, local boards
and ageircics in developing and managing the programs. In conjtuiction with (he Executive Director and Fiscal
Offica this positiorts provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved ufth the agertcy-s high-
perfornianpe senior leadership (cam In the dcvdopmcht, iniplem.chtation, ud managemeiit of program content as
wdl as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring (hat services and programs provided fulfill the agency's
missioD and aro in compliance with all federal, state, hmdtng. dly, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2013-2016

Responsible for coordinatioo. implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and mahagemeni of (he Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs, Crisis Programs. Wcstberiza.tion Program. Lead Hazard Cmitrol Program, and
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rodungham.Counties. Develop and Miintain relationships with

.federal, state and local, grantoro. Intervene on behalf of the Qommunlry Action po^'ning.to the Core Utility
Weatberiation Energy Effidency Programs. Maintuns a strong working relatiornships with OCA; NH Le^l
Assistance, Office of Strategic Iniliaiive, DOE, Liberty Utilities, Eversourcc, NHEC, Unltll, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non^^fit ud private compatiies. in the Indusoy. Paftidpatcs'i.n multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

Weatherlzatlon Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and managcmcoi of the
Weatheriadon, Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Roddngham'Coundes.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal;.state ai^'local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Action Association during (he merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along witb filings
pcruihing to the Core Energy EfTiciency Programs. .Oevdopcd strong working relationships with OCA, NH



Legal Assistance, OfTice of and.Planning, DOE, Liberty Energy, Evcnource, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA,
NI^U Ai^se aii'd other local non-profit and private companies to the indu^. Served on the Dqtar^ent of
Energy ipecial task force dcisigncd to implement a.National Best Praaices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weathenzation Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot effort which becamc:a
statewide practice and has rccdvcd national recognition

Energv Auditor! Southern New Hampshire SerMccs Inc.
2004 - 2006

Responsible for performing Held energy'eudits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized formats to detennine cost effectiveness of conservation measures needed; generate work.ordcr
specs, for the contracttjrs. Conduct proper follow through and field inspMtions to assure quality .ioj^llatioiu and
client satisfaction.

Network Analyst j Genuity
200|4 -:2006
Responsible for monitoring the Gcnuity..Dial up rietwoHt supporting AOL Domesltc and International ttibscribcre
inehiding Japan, USA arid Canada. Responsibilities include isolating arid troubleshooting prciblems/outagcs and
conngurstion lssues. on.dlfTerent types of Cisco routers. Lucent APX's. MAX's, and .Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshopting ooi^ists of isolating problems through head to head testingwith differcnt'Telco'is. Also
responsible for creariog, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a groiip lickctmg queue.- Dcmonmted strengths
in die areas of interpersonal skills and n^otiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community-Tochriical Collcgt;
1994.1998: Dover High S^ool
ptV-' Westherizatioo'written and field certification. Department of.Encrgy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and riegorial weatherintion best practices minings. Intrp to Cisco roxitqs, Tl arid
T3 design and troubleshooting training ATM and Frame Relay nerwort design.traihiag LAN and WAN
tirBining OC3,QC48, and OCI92 design and .troubleshooting training BPI Energy Analyst Lead conriactor
abatement Certification, RRP certification, OSHA JO hour worker safety, DOE Lcad Safe Weaiherizatiori
ccitirieatk»t

skills

Problem solving
New!Busirieu Development

.Social Media

Public Spewing
DaU.Anjalysis/Analytical thinking
Strategic Planning
Operations,Management
Contract Negotiations
Team and Relationship building
Planning and forecasting

Budget and FiaarKial management
Leadership

Community Assessiherit
•Cdmptiter skills qrecific' to'job inclu^
TREAT, NEAT, OTTER. FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365. PowerPoint Outlook.
Wprd..Exccl;,Wcbi Empot^R and CSST
and.many others that can be beneficial.

# ACnVITlES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
•  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits.fiom the Assistant Secretary of Energy

Efficiency ftom.the Department of Eoc^ and Vice President Joe Biden.
'• Member ofthe City, of Nashua .Healthy Homes Strategic Pli^nning Committee.
•  Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
•  Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 2015.

•  Vice.Presidcnt of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board.
•  Member of the Energy Efficiency and Susttin^le Energy Board.
•  Member of thc.Residoitial Ralcpayen Advisory Board.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years of non-profit experience and over 20 years of broad
experience In manufacturing, distribution, reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitoring performance metrics in a manufacturing environment.
Experienced in private and public.corporations, including 8 years in a private equity environment with a strong
focus on equity sponsor cpmmunicatlpn and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development In a team
environment. Professional Experience:

•  Fiscal Officer in nonprofit organization

•  Controller in MFG & OlstHbution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Management

•  FinarKlai & Capital Budgeting, Reporting 8i Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

• General Accounting Manager

•  Business Petformance Metrlc.Establlshmentand.Measurement ^

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH 5/200?-Present
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) is a non-profit entity dedicated to helplng.pepple help themselves.

SNHS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at centers, offices, cllnlcs; and Intake sighU
located throughout Rockingham and Hlllsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29 housing facilities
with approximately 1000 tenants;. SNHS receives and administers $36 mlliloh In program funds annually with
over 450 employee!

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present

•  Oversee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential business
risks

• Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities

•  Prepare presehtatlon for Board of Directors meetings presenting the organization's fihahclal results
•  Develop and .maintain banking relationships

• Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior Accountant 5/2009-1/2017

Assisted Fiscal Director in overseeing all flscal and financial activities Including compliance with federal, state,
and funding source requirements as well as accprdance with GAA.P
•  Developed and Implemented indirect cost calculation and Interfaced with General Ledger
• Monitored and prepared monthly.budget vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast

spending

•  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requirements

•  Designed allocation methods for properly billing shared Items to individual grants and programs
•  Prepared monthly agency program reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



James M. Chaisson

WOOD STRUaURES, INC. BIddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, Is a highly leveraged business owned by ftoark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered In Atlanta.

GA. WSI Is a $70 million manufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wall panels and a distributor of engineered
wood products, The company's products are sold Into the residential and light commercial construction

markets

Controller 2006-4/2009

Managed all aspects of accounting and reporting In a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products distribution location that included 2 loiUitions In Maine arid 1 In Massachusetts..
•  Calculated and assisted in the management of the company's covenants
• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process from the seller (Harbour Group) and

buyer (Roark.CapItai)

•  identified cost drivers and Implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement

•  Oversaw the payroll function of 16(H-employees

Accounting Monaaer .2001-2006

Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accounting processes.. Responsible'for oyerseeing the accounting of 2 locations In Maine .and 1.in
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors

•  Educated, motivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed in their rolls of financial responsibility .
•. Identified and implemented processes and procedures for all Intercompany sales, transfers,

consolidation and eliminations

•  Streamlined the payroll process that Included transferring to an external supplier (AOR). which reduced
cost by 40%

•  Conducted physical inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sanford, ME 1978-2001
^hay Sprague Is a division of Vishay Intertechnology Inc. (NYSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum

capacitors with annual sales of $200 million and 1;400 employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager 1997-2001

Division General Accounting Manooer 1995-1997

Division Ooeration Accountant 1989-1995

Division Fixed Asset Accountant 1987-1989

Master Engineering Technician 1984-1987

Lead Production Technician' .1978*1984

EDUCATION

NA5S0N COLLEGER. Sprlngvale, ME

B.S. In Business Administration




